

# High School Program of Studies

2022-23

The 2022-23 High School Program of Studies for Albemarle County Public Schools was designed as an online, interactive website, accessible at:

k12albemarle.org/HSProgramOfStudies

This printable version was downloaded on **October 26, 2022**.

Edits made to the online version of the guide after this date are not reflected in this printable copy.

Links embedded within the online version are not accessible through this document.

If you have any questions about the content within this guide, please contact your school counselor.

# Table of Contents

Introduction	5
Course Requests	5
Course Request Timeline	5
Career Planning	5
Making a Career Plan: Getting Started	6
Career Planning Activities	6
Career Clusters: Pathways to College & Career Readiness	6
Plans of Study	6
Creativity & Career Planning	7
Expanding Opportunities for Students	7
Course Credit Guidelines	8
Advanced Placement (AP) Exams & Limits	8
Appeals Process	
Early Dismissal	8
Exam Exemptions	8
Exams	8
Grading Policy	8
International Transcript Evaluations	8
Makeup Work	9
Out-of-School Suspension	9
Registration & Add/Drop Procedures	9
Repeating a Course	9
Student Absences, Excuses & Dismissals	10
Translation of Pass/Fail Grades	10
Departments & Course Descriptions	11
Career and Technical Education (CTE)	
CTE Program Areas & Course Descriptions	
Business and Information Technology	
Career Connections	
Family and Consumer Science	16
Health and Medical Science	
Marketing	
Military Science	
Technology Education	
Charlottesville-Albemarle Technical Education Center (CATEC)	
English	
The Importance of Effective Reading Skills	
The Importance of Effective Writing Skills	

English Course Descriptions	22
Fine and Performing Arts	26
Fine Arts Program Areas & Course Descriptions	26
Performing Arts: Instrumental Music	26
Performing Arts: Theatre	28
Performing Arts: Vocal Music	29
Visual Arts: Art	30
Visual Arts: Publishing and More	32
Health, Physical Education & Driver Education	34
Health, PE & Driver Education Course Descriptions	34
History & Social Science	36
History & Social Science Course Descriptions	36
Mathematics	41
Mathematics Course Descriptions	41
Science	44
Science and Engineering Practices	44
Engineering Design Process	44
Science Course Descriptions	44
Special Education	
Special Education Course Delivery Models	48
Special Education Course Descriptions	48
World Languages	50
World Languages Program Areas & Course Descriptions	
French	50
German	50
Latin	
Spanish	51
Enrichment Opportunities	53
General Information	55
Athletic Eligibility	55
Certificate of Program Completion	55
Core Courses: Levels	55
Diploma Seals	55
Early High School Program Completion	56
Early Graduation Request Form	60
Enriching Your High School Experience	56
Grade Point Average, Academic Achievement Program & Weighted Grades	57
Grading Scale	58
Graduation Requirements	58

Individualized Student Alternative Education Program (ISAEP)(ISAEP)	58
Regulations Governing the Secondary School Transcript	59
Sequential Electives	59
Student Course Load	59
Verified Credits	59
Index of Courses	61
Advanced Placement (AP)	61
Career and Technical Education	63
Dual Enrollment	67
English	70
Enrichment Opportunities	71
Fine and Performing Arts	72
Health, Physical Education & Driver Education	75
History & Social Science	76
International Baccalaureate (IB)	79
Mathematics	80
Science	82
Special Education	
World Languages	

# **High School Program of Studies**

## Introduction

Welcome to the High School Program of Studies for Albemarle County Public Schools (ACPS) for the **2022-23 school year**. This online, interactive guide serves as a tool to assist students with course selections and long-term educational and career planning. Each January, school counselors, in collaboration with parents and teachers, assist each student in planning a program of study and selecting courses for the next school year.

The content in this online guide is updated on an as-needed basis. A printable PDF version is produced annually: <u>2022-23 High School Program of Studies</u> (October 26, 2022).

# **Course Requests**

The course request process for the upcoming year is an opportunity for students to think carefully about their interests, achievements, and educational and career goals. We encourage students to give serious consideration to this process.

#### **Course Request Timeline**

#### **NOVEMBER**

1. The High School Program of Studies will be updated for the following school year and made available online to students and parents to make preliminary requests and plans. Schools will print copies upon request.

#### **DECEMBER – JANUARY**

- 2. Curriculum expos for current high school students and rising ninth-grade students will take place.
- 3. Classroom presentations and small group program planning sessions will take place with school counselors as they visit classrooms to explain the High School Program of Studies. School counselors will begin meeting with students individually to review teacher recommendations, five-year plans, and transcripts.
- 4. Teacher recommendations will be completed for each student in conjunction with student online registration.

#### JANUARY - MARCH

5. Students will schedule a meeting with school counselors to request courses.

#### **APRIL**

6. Course requests will be verified.

#### LAST FRIDAY IN APRIL

7. To allow for the building of a balanced master schedule, all course request adjustments must be made by the last Friday in April.

# **Career Planning**

All Albemarle County high school students will graduate with a career plan. With the support of school counselors and career specialists, students will develop and refine their career plan through a 4-year planning process that allows students to:

- Establish short-term and long-term education/career goals;
- · Assess personal interests as they relate to career decisions;
- Formulate thoughtful educational plans that reflect rigorous academics in their chosen career directions;
- · Participate in electives, extracurricular activities, and community service projects supporting their career directions; and
- Include internships or cooperative work experiences during their junior and/or senior years.

#### Making a Career Plan: Getting Started

According to research, there are four main pillars of career planning:

- 1. Self-Assessment: Learn more about you; be clear about your likes, dislikes, values, personality, and learning style.
- 2. Research: Find out more about the careers that interest you— about the output of these careers and what the working situations will be like.
- 3. Make a Fit: Match your skills with the career that best suits you and your skill sets.
- 4. Create a Plan: Craft a whole plan that includes finding an educational program, selection of a school, financial aid, resume preparation, standardized admission tests, and interviewing techniques.

#### **Career Planning Activities**

As students mature, change, and develop new skills, they may modify their career plan to reflect their new interests and goals. The career interest inventories and activities that students complete during high school utilize the <u>Virginia Department of Education's Career Clusters</u>.

#### 9TH GRADE

Personal goal setting, career pathways survey (registration), curriculum expo, career plan update, year-end review

#### **10TH GRADE**

Personal goal setting, career pathways survey (registration), curriculum expo, career plan update, interest inventory, career fair, year-end review

#### 11TH GRADE

Personal goal setting, internship/CTE co-op experience, resume workshop, curriculum expo, career plan update, college and career prep workshop, year-end review

#### 12TH GRADE

Personal goal review, internship/CTE co-op experience, finalize college and career plans workshop, finalize resume, career plan update, exit survey

#### **ALL GRADES**

Outside learning experiences: clubs, sports, job shadowing, community service, part-time/summer job, student government, internship, teacher cadet

## Career Clusters: Pathways to College & Career Readiness

Career clusters help students investigate careers and design their courses of study to advance their career goals. A career cluster is a grouping of occupations and broad industries based on commonalities. Within each career cluster, there are multiple career pathways that represent a common set of skills and knowledge, both academic and technical, necessary to pursue a full range of career opportunities within that pathway—ranging from entry level to management, including technical and professional career specialties.

To learn more about each of Virginia's 17 career clusters, visit the Virginia Department of Education's Career Clusters web page.

## **Plans of Study**

Plans of study provide successful student transitions between secondary and post-secondary education. The Virginia Department of Education (VDOE) provides sample <u>Academic and Career Plans of Study</u> aligned to the National Career Clusters framework. This resource is designed to assist Career and Technical Education (CTE) administrators and school counselors in developing student academic and career plans of study for each pathway within a career cluster. The sample plans of study provided by the VDOE meets all state and federal requirements.

Note: The VDOE's sample plans of study do not include Freshman Seminar, which is a required course for all ninth-grade ACPS students.

#### **Creativity & Career Planning**

Creativity is the key to success in the 21st century! A well-rounded high school program involves careful planning of electives. The 21st century workplace requires new multi-disciplinary and creative ways of thinking about problem-solving and managing knowledge. We suggest that students think creatively about how a variety of electives, especially in the areas of art, business, engineering, and human relations, can support their career goals.

# **Expanding Opportunities for Students**

Piloted in 2019-20 and expanded in 2020-21, ACPS allows students the opportunity to participate in unique courses and explore career pathways of interest at a location other than their base high school. In this scenario, students maintain their base high school status for sports and extracurricular activities.

By eliminating geography from the equation, ACPS is expanding student access to our current academies and newly-developed programs like the National Defense Cadet Corps, the Early College Scholars Degree Program, and the Information and Communication Technology Academy.

ACPS is committed to increasing learning opportunities for students! Look for even more academies and career pathways in 2023 and beyond designed around the Department of Education's Career Clusters as we seek to make our students' high school experience more engaging, more meaningful, and more relevant to their futures!

# **Course Credit Guidelines**

#### **Advanced Placement (AP) Exams & Limits**

AP Exams are administered each year in May and represent the culmination of college-level work in a given discipline in a secondary school setting. Rigorously developed by committees of college and AP high school faculty, the AP Exams test students' ability to perform at a college level. Students who perform well can receive course credit and/or advanced standing at thousands of universities worldwide. For more information about AP Exams, including preparation, dates and fees, visit the College Board's AP Central site.

#### **AP LIMITS**

Freshmen will no longer be able to take Advanced Placement (AP) classes. As they progress through high school, students will be limited to no more than nine (9) AP classes total between their sophomore and senior years.

#### **Appeals Process**

Loss of credit may be appealed to the School Attendance Committee. The principal makes decisions regarding loss of credit. Any decision to deny credit or promotion may be appealed to the Superintendent or designee for final disposition.

#### **Early Dismissal**

If a class is missed due to early dismissal, it is considered an absence. As noted previously, absences are recorded by individual classes not by school day. Three early dismissals equals an absence in the applicable class(es).

#### **Exam Exemptions**

As an incentive for students to attend school regularly and consistently perform well, exam exemptions can be earned by students who meet the following criteria for grades and behavior during the final semester of the course:

- The student must have a grade of 90 or higher in the class for second semester.
- · No student is eligible for exemptions who has had an in-school or out-of-school suspension.

#### **Exams**

Exams are not required at the mid-term or end-of-course. Summative assessments will have a weight determined by the teacher/Professional Learning Community (PLC).

## **Grading Policy**

ACPS is committed to a balanced and equitable assessment system. Balanced assessment systems provide accurate and timely information about student learning and achievement. The crux of a balanced assessment system is equitable grading practices. Healthy grading practices encourage and support learning by helping students and teachers see that their continued efforts will result in success.

The division's full grading policy is available here: School Board Policy IKBA, Grading Policy

## **International Transcript Evaluations**

Transcripts for international students in grades 9-12 transferring to U.S. schools for the first time require evaluation to determine units of credit that may count toward graduation. When provided, an international transcript evaluation must be completed and standard units of credits are awarded as part of the registration process with the <a href="International & ESOL Program">International & ESOL Program</a>. International transcripts must be official to confer credit. If needed, the ESOL Office will obtain translation of these documents in accordance with federal law.

#### Makeup Work

Students who have been absent or are suspended are responsible for any work missed. See student handbook for details.

#### **Out-of-School Suspension**

After the third calendar day of absences resulting from out-of-school suspension, days of subsequent suspension count against the limit of absences for earning credit. The Attendance Committee gives special attention to these absences and may withhold a final decision on loss of credit until the end of the semester or the current school year, as appropriate. During this time, the student's behavior is monitored to assess progress.

#### Registration & Add/Drop Procedures

Course selection for the upcoming year is an opportunity for each student to think carefully about interests, achievement, and educational and career goals. Give very serious consideration to this registration process. Research indicates that college success is strongly related to the level of difficulty of high school courses.

After students make their selections for the following year, teachers will indicate their recommendations in PowerSchool and connect with families that have chosen a different course than what the teacher recommends.

School counselors will meet with students individually to review course selections and graduation requirements and to make sure students are on track with post-secondary goals. Registration Forms are brought home for parental/guardian review and signature and returned to the school counselor within three (3) days of the planning meeting.

After the submission of the registration form, all requests for schedule changes must be made by the last Friday in April (of the previous school year). It may not be possible to accommodate requests for changes.

Credits cannot be earned for courses entered after ten (10) school days have passed for year-long classes, and five (5) school days have passed for semester classes.

#### Other considerations:

- · Due to budget and staffing guidelines, course selections are finalized by the end of the preceding school year.
- Selected courses may be offered during zero period, which meets before school. Students who register for these courses must provide their own transportation.
- A course is offered only if enough student requests support that course.
- Electives: alternate choices are made, as the school reserves the right to assign students the alternate choice if necessary or if scheduling conflicts
- Corrections to student schedules must take place on or before the 5th day of the semester for semester-long courses and on or before the 10th day
  for year-long courses, to a prevent penalty or notation on the student's transcript.
- Added Classes: Classes may only be added under extenuating circumstances and must take place on or before the 5th day of the semester for semester-long courses and on or before the 10th day for year-long courses.
- Dropped Classes: Classes dropped after the 5th day of the semester for semester-long courses and after the 10th day for year-long courses but before the 2nd week after the 1st interim period will have a "W" (withdraw) noted on the transcript. The "W" is not factored into the GPA. Permission of the Principal is required.
- Under extenuating circumstances, exceptions may be considered by the Principal for a class to be dropped after the above dates. A withdrawn failure (WF) is recorded on the student's transcript. The withdrawn failure (WF) is included in the GPA calculation.
- An appeal of this policy may be considered by the Principal for the student to receive a Withdrawn (W) on their transcript and not have the course included in the GPA calculation.
- Dual Enrollment/college courses follow the college's add/drop procedures.

## Repeating a Course

All courses taken and grades earned are recorded on the transcript, including courses retaken. However, only the highest grade is calculated in the GPA.

#### Student Absences, Excuses & Dismissals

School attendance is critical to academic achievement and preparing students for the world of work and personal success. Each parent or guardian having charge of a child within the compulsory attendance age is responsible for the child's regular and punctual attendance at school as required under provisions of state law. Please refer to <a href="School Board Policy JED">School Board Policy JED</a>, <a href="Student Absences/Excuses/Dismissals">Student Absences/Excuses/Dismissals</a>, for specifics.

A note about chronic absences: The middle school principal and the high school principal have the discretion to deny high school credit toward graduation for a course to a student who misses more than ten (10) single class periods during the school year. Any decision to deny credit may be appealed to the principal or principal's designee for restoration under conditions determined by the principal.

#### **Translation of Pass/Fail Grades**

Students receiving a "Pass" in a course designated as pass/fail are credited with completion of the course, but the grade from such a course is not included in the calculation of the GPA. Students receiving a "Fail" in a pass/fail course receive a grade point of 0, which is included in calculations of the GPA.

# **Departments & Course Descriptions**

- Career & Technical Education (CTE)
   English
   Fine and Performing Arts
   Health, Physical Education & Driver Education
   History & Social Science
- Mathematics
- Science
  Special Education
  World Languages

# **Career and Technical Education (CTE)**

Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs provide learners with the knowledge and skills they need to be prepared for college and careers. It gives purpose to learning by emphasizing real-world skills and practical knowledge within a selected career focus.

CTE courses lead to opportunities across a variety of careers, industries and pathways and provide the sequential electives required for graduation.

Through the Virginia Department of Education's High School Industry Credentialing initiative, students can earn a credential or license by passing an approved exam. Students who successfully complete a CTE program and pass the accompanying state-approved credentialing exam may earn two verified credits to fulfill a graduation requirement. These students have a higher earning potential and ultimately will be more marketable.

CTE graduation requirements can be fulfilled with courses described in this section. Courses are organized below by program area.

# CTE Program Areas & Course Descriptions

#### **Business and Information Technology**

#### **AP Computer Science A**

AP Computer Science A is an introductory college-level computer science course. Students cultivate their understanding of coding through analyzing, writing, and testing code as they explore concepts like modularity, variables, and control structures. (CTE Code: 3185)

## **AP Computer Science Principles**

AP Computer Science Principles is an introductory college-level computing course. Students cultivate their understanding of computer science through working with data, collaborating to solve problems, and developing computer programs as they explore concepts like creativity, abstraction, data and information, algorithms, programming, the internet, and the global impact of computing. (CTE Code: 10019)

#### **AP Microeconomics - VA Personal Finance**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level microeconomics, AP Microeconomics courses provide students with a thorough understanding of the principles of economics that apply to the functions of individual decision makers (both consumers and producers). They place primary emphasis on the nature and functions of product markets, while also including a study of factor markets and the role of government in the economy.

Students learn how to navigate the financial decisions they must face and to make informed decisions related to career exploration, budgeting, banking, credit, insurance, financing postsecondary education, spending, taxes, saving, investing, buying/leasing a vehicle, living independently, and inheritance. Development of financial literacy skills and an understanding of economic principles will provide the basis for responsible citizenship and career success. (CTE Code: 6121)

## **Business Management**

Students study basic management concepts and leadership styles as they explore business ownership, planning, operations, marketing, finance, economics, communications, the global marketplace, and human relations. Quality concepts, project management, problem solving, and ethical decision making are an integral part of the course. (CTE Code: 6135)

## Computer Science 1, 2

Students in Computer Science 1 explore programming concepts, use algorithmic procedures, implement programming procedures with one or more standard languages, and master programming fundamentals. Coding is used throughout the course. Graphical user interfaces may be used as students design and develop interactive multimedia applications, including game programs. In addition, students employ HTML or JavaScript to create Web pages. Students develop their employability skills through a variety of activities. (CTE Code: 6640)

Building on their foundation of programming skills, Computer Science 2 students use object-oriented programming to develop database applications, interactive multimedia applications including game applications, mobile applications, and Web applications. Students continue to develop their employability skills as they research pathways for continuing education and careers in the information technology industry and engage in various career-building activities. (CTE Code: 6641)

#### Cybersecurity 1, 2, 3

Cybersecurity affects every individual, organization, and nation. The Cybersecurity 1: Fundamentals course focuses on the evolving and all-pervasive technological environment with an emphasis on securing personal, organizational, and national information. Students will be introduced to the principles of cybersecurity, explore emerging technologies, examine threats and protective measures, and investigate the diverse high-skill, high-wage, and high-demand career opportunities in the field of cybersecurity. (CTE Code: 6302)

Cybersecurity 2: Software Operations is designed to teach many aspects of computer support and network administration. Students learn networking concepts, from usage to components, and create peer-to-peer network systems and client server networks. Students learn how to install and configure network cards and connect them to networks; to install the operating systems; to create, set up, and manage accounts; to load software; and to establish, implement, and maintain network integrity security plans. This course may cover software-based network operating systems, such as Windows Server or Linux, to prepare students with a foundation in computer network administration. (CTE Code: 6304)

Cybersecurity 3: Advanced Software Operations continues to teach aspects of network administration, focusing on the management and support of network users and systems. The topics covered include understanding the responsibilities of computer professionals, training end users, evaluating new technology, developing system policies, troubleshooting workstations, managing network services and protocols, and effectively using email and business communications. Students learn communication protocols, troubleshooting techniques for systems and client-server networks, website management, and other advanced networking topics. Techniques that are used to install operating systems, set up and manage accounts, load software, and create and implement security plans are taught. This course may provide instruction about software-based network operating systems, such as Windows Server or Linux. Instruction will emphasize preparation for industry certification. (CTE Code: 6306)

#### **Economics/Personal Finance**

Students learn how economies and markets operate and how the United States economy is interconnected with the global economy. Additionally they learn how to navigate the financial decisions they must face and to make informed decisions relating to career exploration, budgeting, banking, credit, insurance, spending, financing postsecondary education, taxes, saving and investing, buying/leasing a vehicle, and living independently. They also learn the importance of investing in themselves in order to gain the knowledge and skills valued in the marketplace. Development of financial literacy skills and an understanding of economic principles will provide the basis for responsible citizenship, more effective participation in the workforce, and career success. The course incorporates all economics and financial literacy objectives included in the Code of Virginia §22.1-200-03B. (CTE Code: 6120)

## Entrepreneurship 1, 2

Entrepreneurship 1 introduces students to the exciting world of creating, owning, and launching their own business. Students will learn concepts and techniques for planning an entrepreneurial venture, using design thinking and business model development. Students will learn about financial statements, marketing principles, sales and customer service, and basic economic principles for successful operation. (CTE Code: 9093)

Entrepreneurship 2 is designed for students who wish to concentrate on advanced strategies for entrepreneurship, building upon concepts introduced in Entrepreneurship 1. The focus of the course is on development of a business plan and small business management. Students will establish, market, and maintain a business. (CTE Code: 9094)

Courses must be taken in sequence.

## Game Design and Development 1, 2

The game design industry is the fastest revenue growing entertainment medium, and has created many new job disciplines. In Game Design and Development 1, a project-based course, students will create innovative games through the application of graphic design, animation, audio, and writing skills. Students will work in teams while developing problem-solving, critical thinking, and effective communication skills. They will analyze, design, prototype, and critique interactive games within a project management environment. Career opportunities across multiple industries, including the entertainment and educational arenas, will be explored. (CTE Code: 8400)

In Game Design and Development 2, students will work collaboratively in teams to refine their game design skills as they apply graphic design, animation, audio and writing skills to create innovative games for education and entertainment. This project-based course enhances problem solving, project management, and communication skills through the analysis, design, construction, and critique of interactive games. Students will learn about career

opportunities in game design and development and investigate the training and certification requirements. (CTE Code: 8401)

Courses must be taken in sequence.

#### Information Technology Fundamentals

Information Technology Fundamentals introduces the essential technical and professional skills required for students to pursue programs leading to professional careers and information technology certifications. The course introduces skills related to digital technology, digital applications, maintenance/upgrading/troubleshooting, and networking fundamentals. Students also explore ethical issues related to computers and Internet technology and examine web page and game design. (CTE Code: 6670)

#### Media and Web Design 1, 2

In Media and Web Design 1, students develop proficiency in designing and creating desktop-published projects, multimedia presentations/projects, and Web sites, using industry-standard application software. Students apply principles of layout and design in completing projects. Students create portfolios that include a résumé and a variety of desktop-published, multimedia, and Web-site projects produced in the course. (CTE Code: 6630)

Students who take Media and Web Design 2 develop advanced skills for creating desktop-published, interactive multimedia, and Web-site projects. Students work with sophisticated hardware and software, applying skills to real-world projects. (CTE Code: 6631)

#### Personal Finance

Students learn how to navigate the financial decisions they must face and to make informed decisions related to career exploration, budgeting, banking, credit, insurance, financing postsecondary education, spending, taxes, saving, investing, buying/leasing a vehicle, living independently, and inheritance. Development of financial literacy skills and an understanding of economic principles will provide the basis for responsible citizenship and career success. (CTE Code: 6121)

#### **Personal Living and Finances**

Students learn how to navigate the financial decisions they must face and to make informed decisions related to budgeting, banking, credit, insurance, spending, taxes, saving, investing, buying/leasing a vehicle, living independently, and inheritance. Instruction in personal finance prepares students to function effectively as consumers, savers, investors, entrepreneurs, and active citizens. The course incorporates all personal living and finances objectives included in the Code of Virginia §22.1-253.13:1.B. (CTE Code: 3120)

## **PVCC BUS 100/200 Business and Management**

Teaches management and the management functions of planning, organizing, leading, and controlling. Focuses on application of management principles to realistic situations managers encounter as they attempt to achieve organizational objectives. (CTE Code: 6135)

## **PVCC BUS 116/165 Entrepreneurship and Small Business**

Presents the various steps considered necessary when going into business. Includes areas such as product-service analysis, market research evaluation, setting up books, ways to finance startup, operations of the business, development of business plans, buyouts versus starting from scratch, and franchising. Uses problems and cases to demonstrate implementation of these techniques. (CTE Code: 9093)

#### **PVCC FIN 107 Personal Finance**

Presents a framework of personal money management concepts, including establishing values and goals, determining sources of income, managing income, preparing a budget, developing consumer buying ability, using credit, understanding savings and insurance, providing for adequate retirement, and estate planning. (CTE Code: 6121)

## PVCC ITD 110/210 Web Page Design I/II

Students taking ITD 110 develop a working knowledge of web site designs, construction, and management using HTML or XHTML. Includes headings, lists, links, images, image maps, tables, forms, and frames. (CTE Code: 6630)<sub>14</sub>

ITD 210 incorporates advanced techniques in web site planning, design, usability, accessibility, advanced site management, and maintenance utilizing web editor software(s). (CTE Code: 6631)

Prerequisites: ITD 110 or Media and Web Design 1 is required for ITD 210.

#### **PVCC ITE 119 Information Literacy**

Presents the information literacy core competencies focusing on the use of information technology skills. Skills and knowledge will be developed in database searching, computer applications, information security and privacy, and intellectual property issues. (CTE Code: 6611)

#### **Career Connections**

#### **Design Your Future Capstone**

Students engage in exploring their interests, skills and values through an integrated course and applied professional experience or mentorship through Work-Based Learning (WBL). As students construct a portfolio of reflections, interviews, and other career investigations, they gain insight into their strengths and professional interests, bringing relevancy to academics and direction to future educational and career choices.

WBL can include a range of experiences as short as a couple hours of job shadowing to more significant participation in internships, apprenticeships, and part-time employment to student-designed experiences such as service learning projects and student-run businesses. These authentic experiences support students' long-range education and career goals while developing professional goals and interpersonal skills. WBL experiences are developed through ACPS partnerships with industry and community organizations, and/or can be self-sourced by students through their own networks that meet program guidelines. More information about the course and WBL experiences are available through each school's Career Specialist. (CTE Code: 9071)

Note: An additional credit can be earned by completing 280 hours of WBL experience that meet program guidelines. In this case, students earn a combined 2 credits, including 1 credit for the Design Your Future Capstone course and 1 credit for 280 hours of WBL experience.

#### **Education for Employment 1**

This course teaches students to make informed career and continuing education choices as they transition from school, gain technical skills, and adapt to the workplace. Students are taught ethical behaviors and career-research, job-acquisition, workplace-communication, self- awareness, self-advocacy, customer-service, and life skills. This course offers students integrated labor market needs through an applied employment education format. (CTE Code: 9078)

## Leadership & Design Thinking

Students develop competencies in identifying individual aptitudes in relation to effective leadership skills, understanding organizational behavior, using effective communication in the workplace, handling human resources and organizational problems, supervising and training employees, resolving conflict, and planning for the future. Continuing education in leadership is emphasized as well as practical leadership experiences in cooperation with school and community leaders. (CTE Code: 9097)

## **PVCC EDU 200 Teaching as a Profession 1**

Provides an orientation to the teaching profession in Virginia, including historical perspectives, current issues, and future trends in education on the national and state levels. Emphasizes information about teacher licensure examinations, steps to certification, teacher preparation and induction programs, and attention to critical shortage areas in Virginia. Includes supervised field placement (recommended: 40 clock hours) in a K-12 school. (CTE Code: 9062)

## Teaching as a Profession 2

Students continue to explore careers in the Education and Training Cluster and pathways. This course provides the opportunity for students to prepare for careers in education as they research postsecondary options, learn about the process of teacher certification in Virginia, and participate in a practicum experience. (CTE Code: 9072)

#### **Family and Consumer Science**

#### **Culinary Arts Specialization**

Continuing from Introduction to Culinary Arts, this course provides students with opportunities to obtain comprehensive knowledge of the food service industry as well as to expand their technical skills in a food service specialty. Students explore careers and refine their skills in implementing safety and sanitation standards, applying nutritional principles, planning menus, using business and math skills, and selecting and maintaining food service equipment. (CTE Code: 8279)

Students will prepare to take the ServSafe Industry Certification, and with a passing score, will test out of PVCC HRI 158 Sanitation and Safety.

#### **Introduction to Culinary Arts**

Introduction to Culinary Arts students investigate food safety and sanitation, culinary preparation foundations, basic culinary skills, diverse cuisines, service styles, nutrition and menu development, and the economics of food. Students also explore postsecondary education options and career opportunities within the food service industry. (CTE Code: 8250)

#### **Health and Medical Science**

#### **Biomedicine 2**

In Biomedicine 2, students gain advanced knowledge and skills related to diverse medical-related pathways. They will explore diagnostic and therapeutic laboratory procedures that support bioscience research and practice. They will also investigate safety and ethical concerns associated with the field. As a part of the course, students will engage in field experiences in which students learn alongside mentor partners from our local healthcare community. (CTE Code: 8347)

#### Biotechnology Foundations in Health & Medical Sciences

This course focuses on various techniques that are used to modify living organisms, or parts of organisms, to improve plants and animals, and the development of microorganisms for specific purposes. Student activities range from bioprocessing and DNA analysis, to medicine, biomechanical systems, and the environment. Students gain insight and understanding about biotechnology career fields. (CTE Code: 8344)

## **Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) 1, 2, 3**

In EMT 1 and EMT 2, students explore and apply the fundamentals of emergency medical services (EMS), anatomy, physiology, and medical terminology while demonstrating skills in assessing and managing patient care, including assessing the scene and understanding shock, resuscitation and trauma. Students must complete a minimum of 85% of the didactic and lab aspects of the course, per 12VAC5-31-1501 in the Code of Virginia. Successful completion of all course requirements may lead to eligibility to take the Virginia State Psychomotor Exam and the National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians (NREMT) cognitive exam. Students must meet the requirements of the Functional Position Description for the Basic Life Support Provider (refer to EMS.TR.14B and 12VAC5-31-1501 in the Code of Virginia). (CTE Code: 8333 and 8334)

Note: Students must be at least 16 years old prior to the first day of EMT instruction. All students will need to undergo a criminal background check that includes fingerprinting and drug screening.

The EMT 3 course is intended for students who have completed EMT 1 and 2, and who may have obtained EMT certification from the Virginia Office of Emergency Medical Services (OEMS). Students will strengthen the skills mastered in the basic courses as they acquire skills to assist advanced life support (ALS) providers, build on the foundations of EMS education, and meet education requirements for certification or recertification. Students also learn to coordinate with other public health and safety services, such as fire control, law enforcement, and emergency management. The course includes mentored as well as instructional experiences. Students must complete a minimum of 85% of the didactic and lab aspects of the course. (CTE Code: 8335)

## Health & Medical Sciences 1, 2

Health & Medical Sciences 1: Intro introduces the student to a variety of healthcare careers and develops basic skills required in all health and medical sciences. It is designed to help students understand the key elements of the U.S. healthcare system and to learn basic healthcare terminology, anatomy and physiology for each body system, pathologies, diagnostic and clinical procedures, therapeutic interventions, and the fundamentals of traumatic and

medical emergency care. Throughout the course, instruction emphasizes safety, cleanliness, asepsis, professionalism, accountability, and efficiency within the healthcare environment. Students also begin gaining job-seeking skills for entry into the health and medical sciences field. In addition, instruction may include the basics of medical laboratory procedures, pharmacology fundamentals, biotechnology concepts, and communication skills essential for providing quality patient care. (CTE Code: 8302)

In Health & Medical Sciences 2: Careers, students explore opportunities in the health care field by developing basic skills common to several health care careers. They study body structure and function, principles of health and disease, and an overview of the health and patient care system. Supervised work-based learning may be part of the course in health care settings and is managed by the health and medical sciences education teacher. (CTE Code: 8331)

#### **Medical Laboratory Technology 1**

In Medical Laboratory Technology 1, students gain foundational knowledge and skills appropriate for a variety of medical-related career paths in the field of medical technology. They are introduced to diagnostic and therapeutic laboratory procedures that support medical research and practice, and investigate safety, quality assurance, and ethical concerns associated with the field of medical technology. (CTE Code: 8377)

#### **PVCC HLT 141 Medical Terminology**

This course is designed to help students learn health care language. Topics are presented in order beginning with each body system's anatomy and physiology and progressing through pathology, diagnostic procedures, therapeutic interventions, and finally pharmacology. Students learn concepts, terms and abbreviations for each topic. (CTE Code: 8383)

#### Sports Medicine/Physiology 1, 2

Sports Medicine/Physiology 1 introduces students to topics such as human anatomy and physiology, nutrition, biomechanics, medical terminology, injuries and illnesses, and legal and ethical issues in sports medicine. Students also examine prospective careers in the sports medicine field. Upon successful completion of this course, students are eligible to take Sports Medicine II and pursue certification as a personal trainer. In this course, students earn a certification in First Aid/CPR/AED. (CTE Code: 8316)

Sports Medicine/Physiology 2 builds upon basic knowledge acquired in Sports Medicine I on topics such as exercise physiology, biomechanics, exercise program design, and injury prevention, assessment, treatment, and management. Students prepare for a career in sports medicine, including completing an internship. Upon successful completion of this course, students will be eligible to take the National Academy of Sports Medicine-Certified Personal Trainer (NASM-CPT) exam. (CTE Code: 8317)

Courses must be taken in sequence.

## Marketing

## **Digital and Social Media Marketing**

This course introduces students to digital and social media marketing. Students explore principles, strategies, tools, and tactics related to consumers, branding, advertising, and promotions. Students explore how success is measured in a digital and social media marketing campaign. This course emphasizes ethics, laws, and security. Students also investigate business and marketing plans as well as careers in digital and social media marketing. (CTE Code: 8125)

## Marketing 1, 2

Marketing 1 students examine activities in marketing and business important for success in marketing employment and postsecondary education. Students will learn how products are developed, branded, and sold to businesses and consumers. Students will analyze industry trends and gain handson experience in the marketing of goods, services, and ideas. Topics will include professionalism in the workplace, product planning and positioning, promotion, pricing, selling, economic issues, and the impact of technology on the marketplace. (CTE Code: 8120)

Marketing 2 students build on knowledge gained in a prior Marketing course. Students participate in supervisory and management activities focusing on the marketing mix, purchasing, financing, human resources, global marketing, pricing, and emerging technologies. Students will prepare for advancement in marketing careers and postsecondary education. (CTE Code: 8130)

#### Sports & Entertainment Marketing 1, 2

The introductory course, Sports & Entertainment Marketing 1, helps students develop a thorough understanding of fundamental marketing concepts and theories as they relate to the sports and entertainment industries. Students will investigate the components of customer service skills, branding, product development, pricing and distribution strategies, business structures, sales processes, social media, sponsorships and endorsements, as well as promotion plans needed for sports and entertainment events. (CTE Code: 8175)

In Sports & Entertainment Marketing 2, students will build on prior knowledge of sports, entertainment, and recreation marketing. This course focuses on the principles of management and planning supported by research, financial, economic, ethical, and legal concepts. Students will be able to plan and execute an event, establish a sports, entertainment, or recreation marketing product/business, and develop a career plan. (CTE Code: 8177)

#### Military Science

#### Army JROTC 1, 2, 3

Army Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps (JROTC) 1 courses include instruction in the organization and functions of the U.S. Army, leadership skills, and life skills education. The content of these courses cover, but is not limited to, the history and evolution of the Army, including its structure, operations, customs and courtesies; maps and navigation; first aid, personal hygiene, and field sanitation; and substance abuse prevention. These courses also introduce students to principles of leadership and citizenship. (CTE Code: AR7913)

Army JROTC 2 courses build upon the content of Army JROTC 1 and include, but are not limited to, ongoing instruction in leadership principles and citizenship; drill and ceremonies; organizational structure; command and staff relationships, functions, and responsibilities; significant military campaigns and leaders; map-reading and orienteering; weapon safety and marksmanship; and survival training. (CTE Code: AR7916)

Army JROTC 3 courses build upon prior Army JROTC courses, giving more emphasis to leadership development. These courses serve to strengthen students' leadership skills (including planning, problem-solving, motivation, and performance appraisal) and management skills (with regard to time, personnel, and other resources) through allowing them to assume leadership duties. Students study topics introduced in earlier years—such as military history, map-reading and orienteering, marksmanship, and drill and ceremonies—at a more advanced level and are also provided with military service opportunities. (CTE Code: AR7918)

## **Technology Education**

## **Architectural Drawing & Design**

Students learn the principles of architecture and increase understanding of working drawings and construction techniques learned in the prerequisite course. Experiences include residential and commercial building designs, rendering, model development, and structural details. Students use computer-aided drawing and design (CADD) equipment and established standards or codes to prepare models for presentation. The course is especially beneficial to future architects, interior designers, or home builders. (CTE Code: 8437)

## Design 1, 2

Design 1: Prototyping is a foundational design theory course that introduces students to a variety of tools that focuses specifically on the nature of design and aesthetic appeal. Students will identify the specific needs of worldly concern or a customer, generate concepts, pitch ideas, and create physical or digital prototypes for evaluation. Students may interact with a variety of problems or iterate a few designs based on the needs of the class. (CTE Code: 8425)

In Design 2: Product Design, students will work in teams to design and create unique, functional and meaningful products that will benefit society. Teams will apply knowledge and skills of design and manufacturing techniques combined with entrepreneurial thinking and social justice to bring ideas and products to market. Throughout the process, they will evaluate how aesthetics, materials, societal impact, and people's interactions with their creations influence the final product or idea. (CTE Code: 8427)

## **Drawing & Design 2**

Students use a graphic language for product design and technical illustration. They increase their understanding of drawing techniques learned in the prerequisite courses. They research design-related fields while identifying the role of advanced drawing and design in manufacturing and construction industry processes. They apply the design process, analyze design solutions, reverse engineer products, create 3-D solid models using CADD, construct physical models, and create multimedia presentations of finished designs. They complete a work portfolio based on a chosen graphic project. (CTE Code: 8438)

#### Engineering 1, 2

Engineering 1: Materials & Processes is an introductory course in design tools and advanced manufacturing technologies. This course is a foundation for learning creative problem solving using a variety of hand tools and CAD/CAM machines. Students will learn the basics in 3D modeling, 2D design, maintenance through application of wood and metalworking equipment, and a variety of technology, including CNC machines, laser cutters, and 3D printers. Students will utilize these tools to solve a variety of problems and create physical and digital solutions. (CTE Code: 8433)

Engineering 2: Construction: Students will apply design thinking to solve real world problems with advanced manufacturing tools and techniques. Throughout this course, students will iterate ideas utilizing software simulation and physics applications to bring functional and practical designs to life. (CTE Code: 8431)

#### **Engineering Drawing & Design**

Students use a graphic language for product design, technical illustration, evaluation of designs, and engineering drawings. They increase their understanding of drawing techniques learned in the prerequisite course. Students use computers, calculators, and descriptive geometry and adhere to established standards to solve design problems. They work in teams to design solutions for an identified need. (CTE Code: 8436)

Prerequisite: Technical Drawing & Design

#### **Engineering Research 1, 2**

In Engineering Research 1, Students examine technology and engineering fundamentals in relation to solving real-world problems. Students investigate engineering history, including major engineering achievements, and they examine the principle engineering specialty fields and their related careers. Students practice engineering fundamentals, using mathematical and scientific concepts, and they apply the engineering design process through participation in hands-on engineering projects. Students communicate project-related information through team-based presentations, proposals, and technical reports. (CTE Code: 8450)

Engineering Research 2 focuses on building an engineering team, working with case studies, managing projects, delivering formal proposals and presentations, and examining product and process trends. In addition, students continue to apply their engineering skills to determine what postsecondary education engineering pathway they want to follow. Students will participate in STEM-based, hands-on projects as they communicate information through team-based presentations, proposals, and technical reports. (CTE Code: 8452)

## Geospatial Technology 1, 2

The geospatial technology program provides experiences pertaining to the study and use of geographic information systems (GIS), global positioning systems (GPS), remote sensing (RS), and mobile technologies. Fundamentally, these technologies allow students to explore and analyze the natural and human-made world, locally, globally, and beyond.

Students in Geospatial Technology 1 use tools, processes, and techniques to create, store, access, manipulate, and revise data to solve human challenges. These experiences employ real-world spatial analysis models and guidelines for integrating, interpreting, analyzing, and synthesizing data, with a focus on both the implications and the limitations of geospatial technologies. (CTE Code: 8423)

Geospatial Technology 2 builds upon the study and use of Geospatial Technology 1. Students further explore and analyze the natural and human-made world, locally, globally, and beyond. Students use tools, processes, and techniques to create, store, access, manipulate, and revise data to solve human challenges. Data is created, collected, and used to analyze spatial relationships. These experiences employ real-world spatial analysis models and guidelines for integrating, interpreting, analyzing, and synthesizing data, with a focus on both the implications and the limitations of such technologies. Students will also use network-based data management systems. (CTE Code: 8424)

Courses must be taken in sequence.

## IB Design Technology I, II

Design Technology courses are recognized International Baccalaureate courses. The courses are designed to promote an understanding and appreciation of the technology design process as a cycle. As students work through the technology course and related project, which unifies all aspects of IB design technology, they analyze and evaluate the impact and ethical considerations arising from technology. The courses focus on how design is used to produce outcomes. In Design Technology 2, the design project is assessed against the design technology criteria: planning, research, development, evaluation, and manipulative skills. (CTE Code: IB4585/IB4586)

19

#### JMU GEOG 161 Geospatial Tools and Techniques

An introduction to the use of geospatial tools, such as geographic information systems (GIS), global positioning systems (GPS) and remote sensing, applied to a variety of areas, including cultural geography, environmental science, ecology, geology and public planning. (CTE Code: 8423)

#### Principles of Technology 1, 2

Students in Principles of Technology 1, a single-period laboratory science course, apply physics and mathematics concepts through a unified systems approach to develop a broad knowledge base of the principles underlying modern technical systems. Students study seven technical principles: force, work, rate, resistance, energy, power, and force transformers, emphasizing how each principle plays a unifying role in the operation of mechanical, fluid, electrical, and thermal systems in high-technology equipment. This "principles and systems" approach to studying these technical principles provides a foundation for further education and career flexibility as technology and technical systems advance.

Note: Students who complete Principles of Technology 1 and 2 may use these courses to satisfy one physics credit in laboratory science. A student must complete both courses in order to receive laboratory science credit. The sequence of Principles of Technology 1 and 2 will satisfy one unit of credit in laboratory science for physics and one elective credit. Students who enroll in Principles of Technology courses for a physics credit must have completed Algebra 1 and two other laboratory science courses as specified by the accrediting standards prior to enrolling in Principles of Technology. (CTE Code: 9811)

Prerequisite(s): Algebra 1 and two lab sciences if using for a physics credit

#### **PVCC CAD 151 Engineering Drawing Fundamentals**

Introduces technical drafting from the fundamentals through advanced drafting practices. Includes lettering, geometric construction, technical sketching, orthographic projection, sections, intersections, development, fasteners. Teaches theory and application of dimensioning and tolerances, pictorial drawing, and preparation of drawings. (CTE Code: 8436)

Prerequisite: Technical Drawing & Design

## **PVCC EGR 121 Introduction to Engineering**

Introduces the engineering profession, professional concepts, ethics, and responsibility. Reviews hand calculators, number systems, and unit conversions. Introduces the personal computer and operating systems. Includes engineering problem solving techniques using computer software. (CTE Code: 8451)

Prerequisite: PVCC MATH 162 PreCalculus or equivalent, such as Mathematical Analysis

## **PVCC EGR 122 Engineering Graphics**

Applies principles of orthographic projection, and multi- view drawings. Teaches descriptive geometry including relationships of points, lines, planes and solids. Introduces sectioning, dimensioning and computer graphic techniques. Includes instruction in Computer Aided Drafting. (CTE Code: 8453)

Prerequisite: PVCC EGR 121 Introduction to Engineering

#### Robotics & Automation 1, 2

Robotics & Automation 1 is a lab-based course that uses a team-based approach to introduce the basic concepts of robotics, construction and programming of autonomous and semi-autonomous robots. The course will focus on careers in engineering, robotics, programming and game design. Course instruction will primarily be tied to lab experiments, as students will work collaboratively to build and test increasingly more complex robots. (CTE Code: 8421)

Students taking Robotics & Automation 2 engage in the study of computers and microprocessors and their applications to manufacturing, transportation, and communication systems. Topics include computer programming using Java, robotic design, control systems, and social/cultural impact of these technologies. Problem-solving activities challenge students to design, program, and interface devices with computer systems. Learning activities include building robots, using computer-aided design, 3D printing, and control of electromechanical devices. Students will participate in hands-on projects in a

laboratory setting as they communicate information through team-based presentations, proposals, and technical reports. In addition, students will have the ability to compete in the First Tech Challenge (FTC) Robotics. This will challenge their engineering skills and give them the ability to communicate with other schools, businesses, and industry. (CTE Code: 8405)

#### **Technical Drawing & Design**

In this foundation course, students learn the basic language of technical drawing and design, and they design, sketch, and make technical drawings, models, or prototypes of real design problems. The course is especially recommended for future engineering and architecture students. (CTE Code: 8435)

#### Video & Media Tech 1, 2, 3

Video & Media Tech 1: Communication Systems provides experiences in the fields of imaging technology, graphic productions, video and media, technical design, and various modes of communicating information through the use of data. Students develop critical-thinking and problem-solving skills using the universal systems model. Students also learn about the impact of communication on society and potential career fields relating to communications. (CTE Code: 8415)

Video & Media Tech 2: Video and Media Technology offers students a hands-on opportunity to study all aspects of video and media production. Students will conceptualize, plan, and contribute through all production phases: preproduction, production, and postproduction. In addition, students will practice various methods of gathering and recording information and creating novel content to create a variety of video and media productions while operating studio editing software and video and audio equipment. (CTE Code: 8497)

Video & Media Tech 3: Digital Visualization provides experiences related to computer animation by using graphics and design concepts. Students solve problems involving 3-D object manipulation, storyboarding, texturing/mapping, lighting concepts, and environmental geometry. Students create a variety of animations that reflect real-world applications and are introduced to interactive and 3-D animation software. Production of a portfolio showcasing examples of original student work is included. (CTE Code: 8459)

# Charlottesville-Albemarle Technical Education Center (CATEC)

Charlottesville-Albemarle Technical Education Center (CATEC) offers the following high school programs at their main campus on E. Rio Road in Charlottesville and at satellite campuses, with transportation provided to and from base high schools:

- Automotive Body Technology
- Automotive Service Technology
- Building Trades
- Cosmetology
- Culinary Arts
- Electricity
- Fire Science
- · Emergency Medical Technician
- Nurse Assistant
- Veterinary Science

Classes are available free of charge to Albemarle County and Charlottesville City public school students. CATEC courses provide hands-on and work-based learning activities alongside academically-driven curricula that prepare students to enter the workforce or continue their education. Work-based experiences include job shadowing, internships, and apprenticeships.

# **English**

Effective reading and writing skills are as important for effective communication as speaking and listening skills. Reading and writing are the basis of written communication and, therefore, are an integral part of each educated individual's life. Written communication is an essential tool for people to express their ideas and learn about the ideas of others.

## The Importance of Effective Reading Skills

Reading skills serve as a foundation for writing. Developed and mastered, effective reading skills give people the opportunity to learn new information about the world, people, events, and places. Reading enriches their vocabularies and improves their writing skills.

- . Through reading, people learn to understand different ways of thinking and feelings of other people and become more flexible and open-minded.
- Reading enriches the inner world of a person and improves grammar and spelling.
- Avid readers not only read and write better than those who read less but also process information faster. The research presented by the Journal of Abnormal Child Psychology proves that poor readers have poorer short memory functions.
- · As a result, avid readers have a broader outlook, are quicker to analyze facts, and find connections between seemingly unrelated ideas.
- · A reader has better skills for comprehending, analyzing, understanding, responding, and, finally, learning from what he or she reads.
- As a result, it is easier for good readers to get used to new and unfamiliar circumstances or ideas. They are easier to communicate with and have higher chances to succeed in both professional and personal life.

Adapted from "The Importance of Reading and Writing Skills," by Alla Kondrat (February 21, 2009).

#### The Importance of Effective Writing Skills

- Excellent writing is sure to earn respect. Poor writing will, on the contrary, be difficult to understand and will leave a bad impression about the
  individual
- Writing structures and crystallizes one's thoughts, improving learning
- Writing improves the effectiveness of the person's word usage in both written and oral speech.
- Application essays, resumes, cover letters, and even e-mails often have to represent an individual. In such cases the person's writing is to form the
  reader's opinion about the individual's personality and abilities.
- A survey conducted among 64 American companies revealed that half of them pay attention to writing when considering a person for employment or promotion.
- According to Roger Howe, a former chairman and CEO of U.S. Precision Lens, the majority of the successful people are clear and persuasive in their writing.
- Developed reading skills lead to the development and improvement of writing skills. Regular readers' comprehension skills (ability to compare and contrast, evaluate and summarize, identify specific features and genres, make analogies) serve as a basis for good writing.

Adapted from "The Importance of Reading and Writing Skills," by Alla Kondrat (February 21, 2009).

# **English Course Descriptions**

## **AP English Language & Composition**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level English courses, AP English Language and Composition courses expose students to prose written in a variety of periods, disciplines, and rhetorical contexts. These courses emphasize the interaction of authorial purpose, intended audience, and the subject at hand, and through them, students learn to develop stylistic flexibility as they write compositions covering a variety of subjects that are intended for various purposes.

## AP English Literature & Composition

Advanced Placement English is for twelfth-grade students who want an intensive, college-level English course that prepares them to take one or both of the AP English Exams. The course is conducted much like a college seminar, and therefore it requires high-quality work in and out of class. Students read works of literature analytically and critically, and they respond with increasing sensitivity and discrimination of language. Essays focus on literary analysis but students have some opportunity to practice creative writing.

#### **Biblical Literature**

Biblical Literature courses have the same aim as general literature courses (to improve students' language arts and critical-thinking skills), focusing on the books of the Bible. Students may compare techniques, styles, and themes of the various books; examine the Bible's influence on secular literature; and may study historical events of Biblical times. Oral discussion is an integral part of these courses, and written compositions are often required.

#### Core +

Tutorial courses provide students with the assistance they need to successfully complete their coursework. Students may receive help in one or several subjects.

#### English 9, 10, 11, 12

English 9 builds upon students' prior knowledge of grammar, vocabulary, word usage, and the mechanics of writing and usually include the four aspects of language use: reading, writing, speaking, and listening. Typically, this course introduces and defines various genres of literature, with writing exercises often linked to reading selections.

English 10 usually offers a balanced focus on composition and literature. Typically, students learn about the alternate aims and audiences of written compositions by writing persuasive, critical, and creative multi-paragraph essays and compositions. Through the study of various genres of literature, students can improve their reading rate and comprehension and develop the skills to determine the author's intent and theme and to recognize the techniques used by the author to deliver his or her message.

English 11 continues to develop students' writing skills, emphasizing clear, logical writing patterns, word choice, and usage, as students write essays and begin to learn the techniques of writing research papers. Students continue to read works of literature, which often form the backbone of the writing assignments. Literary conventions and stylistic devices may receive greater emphasis than in previous courses.

English 12 blends composition and literature into a cohesive whole as students write critical and comparative analyses of selected literature, continuing to develop their language arts skills. Typically, students primarily write multi-paragraph essays, but they may also write one or more major research papers.

## **Environmental Literature/Law/Policy**

Through the analysis of environmental literature and examination of important laws and policy, students will explore the complex relationship between human beings and the environment. Students will develop a comprehensive understanding of how literature, philosophy, and governmental action have correlated historically with important environmental issues. Content will include local, regional and global policy changes and current legislation and will be supported by a combination of fiction, non-fiction, poetry, and case studies.

#### **ESOL 1, 2, 3**

Students who take ESOL 1 begin a journey of adding a new language and culture to their international experiences. The course fosters a love for reading by using a readers' workshop model that allows students to explore new texts in English. Students practice English across the domains of writing, speaking, listening, and reading in lessons that explore open-ended questions and model real-world environments to follow the interests of students. They use English to solve problems as well as to investigate personal interests and academic themes. Students learn social vocabulary quickly and build understanding of key academic vocabulary that spans across disciplines. The course explores students' cultures and how these connect to their new community. Students use their strengths in these cultures and their native languages to learn English. Each student in ESOL 1 forms a graduation plan to achieve individualized post-secondary goals.

Students who take ESOL 2 use academic English vocabulary in open-ended projects that require public speaking and writing for real audiences. Students continue their exploration of reading and supplement this with a writers workshop model that focuses on learning the process of revision to express ideas in public forums. Students continue to use their own cultures and languages as strengths for gaining new insights and expressing themselves in English. They build on and refine their individual graduation plans, with teacher and counselor support, and explore options for connecting with school and community extracurricular resources and activities. Finally, the ESOL 2 teacher coordinates with content teachers to tailor instruction to the needs of students in ESOL 2 who are also taking courses required for graduation.

ESOL 3 supports advanced English Learners taking rigorous academic courses required for meeting graduation requirements. Students who take ESOL 3 learn academic vocabulary that may be applied across a range of courses required for meeting graduation requirements. They explore their linguistic and cultural heritage and connect these to the civic and economic life of their community in individual and collaborative projects. The ESOL 3 course emphasizes applying academic vocabulary in advanced academic writing, research, and projects with real-world audiences. Students use these skills to excel on class assignments and give presentations using formal oral English. Students create, revisit, and revise individual graduation plans and connect their curricular and extracurricular activities to postsecondary goals. The ESOL 3 teacher coordinates with content course teachers to tailor instruction to the needs of students in ESOL 3 who are also taking courses required for graduation.

#### **ESOL Study Skills 1, 2**

This ESOL course is designed as a writing-intensive resource class to support English Learners who are taking a mainstream-level course load. The ESOL teacher works closely with content area teachers to design enrichment lessons that teach content curriculum with an emphasis on comprehension and academic vocabulary. Students also receive support in test-taking and study skills, organizational skills, SOL preparation, and effective reading strategies.

#### **Genre Studies**

This course will focus on one genre each quarter, rotating through a variety of genre over the course of a year. Quarterly offerings could include non-fiction, poetry, and contemporary literature, as well as more specialized studies such as historical fiction, dystopian/science fiction, or magical realism. Students will sample a variety of writers and literature in each studied genre, and will incorporate independent and individualized reading programs designed to allow each student the opportunity to explore a variety of topics.

#### **IB English 11, 12**

IB English 11 and 12 are organized into three parts, each focused on a different aspect of literature and performance. Together, the three parts of each course cover the critical study of literary texts, exploration of chosen approaches to a text, and realization of texts in performance. Students engage with a wide variety of textual genres to explore the concept of transformation, examining the ways in which the contexts of production and reception shape meaning.

Courses must be taken in sequence.

#### **Media Studies**

A multi-disciplinary course that will explore multimodal communication, including news writing, photojournalism, social media, fiction and documentary filmmaking, and entertainment, and their broader sociological implications. Designed to offer cross-curricular opportunities in the humanities, including English, history, psychology, sociology, and journalism. Students will be given the opportunity to explore various topics and interests through individualized projects.

## Peer Tutoring I, II, III

Students enrolled in Peer Tutoring I are responsible for operating the school's peer tutoring center. They will learn a variety of pedagogical approaches and practice leadership skills that will serve them in their future professions. In addition to tutoring, students will strengthen their own knowledge in areas such as study habits, resume writing, and research skills. All students are required to tutor for approximately 45 minutes outside of class, once per week.

Students in Peer Tutoring II apply the knowledge they gained in Peer Tutoring Ito take on an enhanced leadership role in the peer tutoring center. They will contribute to managing center operations, mentoring new tutors, and heightening school-wide academic achievement. They will make at least one significant contribution to the wider peer tutoring community; for example, by presenting at a conference or publishing a scholarly article.

Building on the leadership skills they established in Peer Tutoring II, tutors in Peer Tutoring III apprentice with a sponsor teacher for the duration of the school year, engaging in a deep study of that educator's approach to instruction in his or her academic field. These seniors will also work with a consistent group of clients on an ongoing basis. They will report on their learning via regular reflection logs, and both create a portfolio of their learning across their three years as a tutor, and innovate a permanent learning tool for the benefit of the school.

Prerequisites: Peer Tutoring II students must successfully complete Peer Tutoring I and be tutors in good standing.

## PVCC ENG 111/112/243 College Composition I/II/Survey of English Literature I

ENG 111 College Composition I introduces students to critical thinking and the fundamentals of academic writing. Through the writing process, students refine topics: develop and support ideas; investigate, evaluate, and incorporate appropriate resources; edit for effective style and usage; and determine appropriate approaches for a variety of contexts, audiences, and purposes. Writing activities will include exposition and argumentation with at least one researched essay.

ENG 112 College Composition II continues to develop college writing with increased emphasis on critical essays, argumentation, and research, developing these competencies through the examination of a range of texts about the human experience. Requires students to locate, evaluate, integrate and document sources and effectively edit for style and usage.

Students in ENG 243 Survey of English Literature I study major English works from the Anglo-Saxon period to the present, emphasizing ideas and characteristics of the British literary tradition. Involves critical reading and writing.

Prerequisites: ENG 111 or its equivalent is a prerequisite for ENG 112. ENG 112 is a prerequisite for ENG 243.

Note: The ENG 111/112/243 pathway is only available to Early College Scholars Degree Program participants.

#### **PVCC ENG 111/112 College Composition I/II**

ENG 111 College Composition I introduces students to critical thinking and the fundamentals of academic writing. Through the writing process, students refine topics: develop and support ideas; investigate, evaluate, and incorporate appropriate resources; edit for effective style and usage; and determine appropriate approaches for a variety of contexts, audiences, and purposes. Writing activities will include exposition and argumentation with at least one researched essay.

ENG 112 College Composition II continues to develop college writing with increased emphasis on critical essays, argumentation, and research, developing these competencies through the examination of a range of texts about the human experience. Requires students to locate, evaluate, integrate and document sources and effectively edit for style and usage.

Prerequisite: ENG 111 or its equivalent is a prerequisite for ENG 112.

## Skills Development Read/Write 1, 2, 3, 4

This course is offered for students who need significant support in literacy. It is designed to develop and enhance fundamental reading and writing skills. Course content includes skills development through decoding and encoding, vocabulary development, comprehension practice, and exposure to various reading strategies. Course content in writing includes instruction in the areas of composition, written expression, usage, and mechanics.

# **Fine and Performing Arts**

Visual and Performing Arts provide a natural and essential context for important habits and skills for lifelong learning, such as creating, risk-taking and perseverance, and also bring us joy as an expressive part of the human experience. Through our Fine Arts classes, students have the opportunity to:

- Apply musical, theatrical, and/or visual arts skills, independently and collaboratively, through performance and display opportunities, both inside and outside of the classroom.
- · Communicate about the Arts by describing, analyzing, evaluating and critiquing using Arts-specific vocabulary.
- · Recognize and appreciate the aesthetic nature of the Arts, anchored in cultural and historical contexts as well as personal preferences
- Connect with Arts opportunities and careers, both locally and globally. The goal of Fine Arts instruction is ultimately to prepare all students for a lifetime
  of engagement with their creative side through art, music, theater, publishing, filmmaking, and creative writing.

Fine Arts courses are organized below by program area.

# Fine Arts Program Areas & Course Descriptions

#### **Performing Arts: Instrumental Music**

## **AP Music Theory**

AP Music Theory courses are designed to be the equivalent of a first-year music theory college course as specified by the College Board. AP Music Theory develops students' understanding of musical structure and compositional procedures. Usually intended for students who already possess performance-level skills, AP Music Theory courses extend and build upon students' knowledge of intervals, scales, chords, metric/rhythmic patterns, and the ways they interact in a composition. Musical notation, analysis, composition, and aural skills are important components of the course.

#### **Concert Band**

Band courses help students develop techniques for playing brass, woodwind, and percussion instruments and their ability to perform a variety of concert band literature styles. These courses emphasize rehearsal and performance experiences in a range of styles and also include experiences in creating and responding to music. Concert Band I is an entry-level large ensemble and is required for all 9th grade band members, except with special permission of the director.

Prerequisite: One year previous instrumental training preferred or director approval

#### **Concert Orchestra**

Strings courses provide students an introduction to, and refine the fundamentals of music and bowed-string instrument literature and techniques and may include more advanced techniques. These courses teach students the appropriate care, handling, and maintenance of musical instruments. Formal and informal performances are included as part of string instrument instructional courses as well as experiences in creating and responding to music.

Prerequisite: Previous instrumental training or director approval

#### Guitar 1, 2

Guitar courses provide students an introduction to, and refine the fundamentals of music and guitar literature and techniques, such as strumming and chords and may offer instruction in more advanced techniques. These courses may include bass, ukulele and other plucked string instruments. Formal and informal performances are typically included as well as experiences in creating and responding to music.

#### **IB Music I**

Involving aspects of the composition, performance and critical analysis of music, the course exposes students to forms, styles and functions of music from a wide range of historical and sociocultural contexts. Students create, participate in, and reflect upon music from their own background and those of others. They develop practical and communicative skills which provide them with the opportunity to engage in music for further study, as well as for lifetime enjoyment.

Prerequisite: Audio Production

#### Jazz Band

Small Ensemble courses help students perform a variety of musical styles. At the same time, these courses help cultivate students' technique on instruments appropriate to the style(s) performed and provide experiences in creating and responding to music. The Jazz Band focuses on the performance, theory, and practice of jazz and popular music including style, articulations, phrasing, improvisation, and ensemble playing. The Jazz Band performs throughout the year in the community, in school concerts, and at jazz festivals.

#### **Marching Band**

Courses in Marching Band are intended to develop students' technique for playing brass, woodwind, and percussion instruments and cover appropriate band literature styles, primarily for marching performances.

#### **Music Theory**

Music Theory courses provide students with an understanding of the fundamentals of music and include the following topics: composition, arranging, analysis, aural development, and sight reading.

#### **Percussion Ensemble**

Small Ensemble courses help students perform a variety of musical styles. At the same time, these courses help cultivate students' technique on instruments appropriate to the style(s) performed. Percussion ensemble is offered for students interested in drumming and keyboard percussion (e.g., marimba, xylophone, bells, etc.) It places emphasis on continued development of skills as well as proper rehearsal and performance techniques. It also includes instruction in theory, ear-training, and music history. The Percussion Ensemble performs winter and spring concerts and at other times at the discretion of the director.

## Piano/Keyboard 1, 2, 3, 4

Piano courses provide students an introduction to and refine the fundamentals of music and keyboard, including literature and techniques such as scales, chords, and melodic lines, and may offer instruction in more advanced techniques.

Piano/Keyboard 1 is designed for students of various levels to learn to play the piano. Students work individually, at their own pace, with teacher supervision and instruction. Class time will be used for instruction, practice and performance for peers.

In Piano/Keyboard 2, students will refine skills and techniques required to play the piano and be introduced to new concepts and more challenging pieces that build on the foundation provided in Piano/Keyboard 1.

Piano/Keyboard 3 and 4 are designed for students who have attained intermediate fluency in piano and wish to continue developing as pianists and musicians. Students will refine skills and techniques required to play the piano and be introduced to new concepts and more challenging pieces that build on the foundation provided in previous Piano/Keyboard courses.

Courses must be taken in sequence.

## String Ensemble

Strings courses provide students an introduction to, and refine the fundamentals of music and bowed-string instrument literature and techniques and may include more advanced techniques. These courses teach students the appropriate care, handling, and maintenance of musical instruments. Formal and informal performances are included as part of string instrument instructional programs as well as experiences in creating and responding to music.

#### **Symphonic Band**

Band courses help students develop techniques for playing brass, woodwind, and percussion instruments and their ability to perform a variety of concert band literature styles. These courses emphasize rehearsal and performance experiences in a range of styles (e.g., concert, marching, orchestral, and modern) and also include experiences in creating and responding to music. The Symphonic Band is an intermediate, large ensemble or for students who do not choose to engage in the commit level of wind ensemble.

Prerequisites: Two years previous instrumental training or director approval; Audition

#### Wind Ensemble

Band courses help students develop techniques for playing brass, woodwind, and percussion instruments and their ability to perform a variety of concert band literature styles. These courses emphasize rehearsal and performance experiences in a range of styles and also include experiences in creating and responding to music. The Wind Ensemble is the most advanced large ensemble and serves as a primary performing ensemble at the school.

Prerequisites: Two years previous instrumental training or director approval; Audition

#### **Performing Arts: Theatre**

#### **Debate 1, 2, 3**

Debate teaches students how to coordinate the written and oral communication process through a study of logical thinking and research techniques culminating in written and oral presentations. A study of the national debate topic, leading to participation in interscholastic debate competition, is one strategy for accomplishing this goal.

#### Improvisation and Comedy

Students will study the history of improvisation as well as the modern schools of improvisation. Students will learn the skills of long and short form improv, examine comedy across cultures over the past fifty years, and write and perform their own sketch comedy.

#### Musical Theatre Ensemble

These courses explore the styles and periods of musical theatre development, and explore singing techniques, various styles of dance and movement, and opportunities to choreograph. This ensemble class works toward one completed musical revue performance or musical (per semester) for presentation at various venues.

#### **Public Speaking**

Public Speaking courses enable students, through practice, to develop communication skills that can be used in a variety of speaking situations (such as small and large group discussions, delivery of lectures or speeches in front of audiences, and so on). Course topics may include (but are not limited to) research and organization, writing for verbal delivery, stylistic choices, visual and presentation skills, analysis and critique, and development of self-confidence.

## **PVCC CST 100 Public Speaking**

Applies theory and principles of public address with emphasis on preparation and delivery.

## **Speech & Communication**

Students learn the basic principles of public speaking by evaluating their own and others' speeches. Technology will be used to produce a computer-generated slide show. Students will learn to become critical listeners and analyze important speeches from history and current events.

#### **Technical Theatre**

This course provides students with an understanding of the various aspects of theatrical production, including lighting, costuming, sound, set construction, makeup, stage management, and the use of computer and media-based applications. This course prepares students to engage in the hands-on application of these production elements in design and technology courses.

#### Theatre Arts 1, 2, 3, 4

Theatre Arts courses focus on the study and performance of drama in its many forms, including musical theater, drama, and comedy. These courses review a wide range of scripted materials (such as plays, screenplays, teleplays, readers' theater scripts); dramatic criticism; techniques for creating original dramatic works; and the role of dramatic arts in society. Theater Arts courses typically require students to perform collaboratively, be involved in the critique of dramatic works, and learn methods for self-expression.

#### **Performing Arts: Vocal Music**

#### **Advanced Concert Choir**

Chorus courses develop students' vocal skills within the context of a large choral ensemble in which they perform a variety of styles of repertoire. These courses are designed to develop students' vocal techniques and their ability to sing parts and include experiences in creating and responding to music.

The Advanced Concert Choir is a mixed group and provides our most advanced choral students opportunities to develop their singing abilities to the greatest possible extent. Advanced chorus performs in public.

Prerequisite: Audition

#### **Advanced Women's Ensemble**

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. Advanced Women's ensemble provides our most advanced female choral students the opportunity to develop their singing abilities to the greatest extent. The ensemble performs in public and all members must participate at all functions.

#### **Concert Choir**

Chorus courses develop students' vocal skills within the context of a large choral ensemble in which they perform a variety of styles of repertoire. These courses are designed to develop students' vocal techniques and their ability to sing parts and include experiences in creating and responding to music.

Concert Choir is available to students with an interest in developing singing ability. Students learn note reading, part singing (soprano, alto, tenor, bass), rhythm, and how to be a participating member of a group.

#### Men's Ensemble

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. Women's Ensemble provides students the opportunity to sing in the lower register (tenor/bass). Repertoire is often a cappella.

Prerequisite: Audition

#### **Show Choir**

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. Show Choir students concentrate on show choir techniques: blocking, choreography, staging, and microphone techniques. In show choir, students demonstrate an advanced knowledge of basic singing skills: pitch-matching, tonal memory, sight reading, theory, and harmony. Students perform major concerts with the possibility of several smaller performances. Students have the opportunity to participate in District Choir, All-State Chorus, District Choral Festival, and a spring competition.

Prerequisite: Audition (vocal and dance)

#### **Treble Jazz**

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. In Treble Jazz students perform standard and contemporary vocal jazz repertoire with an emphasis on jazz technique. Students demonstrate an advanced knowledge of basic singing skills. Students have the opportunity to perform in local, regional, and state-wide Choral events.

Prerequisite: Audition

#### **Vocal Jazz**

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. In this ensemble, students perform standard and contemporary vocal jazz repertoire, with an emphasis on jazz technique. Students demonstrate an advanced knowledge of basic singing skills. Students perform three major concerts with the possibility of several smaller performances.

#### Women's Ensemble

Vocal Ensemble courses help students develop vocal techniques and refine their ability to sing parts in small ensembles. Women's Ensemble provides students the opportunity to sing in the upper register (treble). Repertoire is often a cappella.

Prerequisite: Audition

#### Visual Arts: Art

## **AP Art History**

Designed to parallel college-level Art History courses, AP Art History courses provide the opportunity for students to critically examine and respond to works of art within their historical and cultural contexts. In covering the art and movements of several centuries (not necessarily in chronological order), students learn to identify different styles, techniques, media and influences. Students formulate and articulate their reactions to various kinds of artwork to understand and appreciate themselves, others, and the world around them.

## AP Studio Art: 2-D Design

Designed for students with a professional or academic interest in two-dimensional art, the course focuses on a variety of concepts and approaches in drawing and 2-D design, enabling students to demonstrate a range of abilities and versatility with media, technique, problem solving, and scope. Such conceptual variety can be demonstrated through the use of one or several media. Students refine their skills and create artistic works to submit via a portfolio to the College Board for evaluation.

## **AP Studio Art: Drawing**

Designed for students with a professional or academic interest in the art of drawing, the course focuses on a variety of concepts and approaches in drawing, enabling students to demonstrate a depth of knowledge of the processes, and a range of abilities, and versatility with media, technique, problem solving, and scope. They can demonstrate such conceptual variety through either the use of one or the use of several media. These courses enable students to refine their skills and create artistic works to submit via portfolio to the College Board for evaluation.

These courses enable students to explore several art forms to create individual works of art. Initial courses emphasize observations, interpretation of the visual environment, visual communication, imagination, and symbolism. Courses cover the language, materials, media, and processes of a particular art form and the design elements used.

#### **Ceramics 1, 2, 3, 4**

Ceramics courses engage students in learning experiences that include the historical and cultural context of ceramics, aesthetic inquiry, and creative production. These courses provide knowledge of ceramic techniques (e.g., kiln firing and glazing) and processes with an emphasis on creative design and craftsmanship. Courses may include clay modeling, hand building, coil building, casting, and throwing on the potter's wheel.

#### **Contemporary Media and Art**

Contemporary Media and Art is an energetic, multidisciplinary course in Art, Design, and Making, in which students get experience in a wide variety of visual languages and exposure to the practice and history of creative technologies. Students work in traditional and digital media, learning how it can be used to create compelling and meaningful artwork. Class projects are thematically based. Students develop creative and personal expressions in response to relevant social matters, individual interests and experience, as well as explorations of design, composition and form. Students actively keep a visual journal for projects and experimentation, and through their work, students expand their knowledge about art and enhance their appreciation of its role in society. During the year, students use the habits of mind through imagination, expression and reflection. Through inquiry, effort and perseverance, students grow as artists, thinkers and people.

#### **Digital Arts 1, 2, 3, 4**

Digital Arts (previously called Digital Imaging/Multimedia Art) courses emphasize applying the fundamental processes of artistic expression for the purpose of creating multimedia productions that explore contemporary social, cultural and political issues. These courses include the history and development of multiple forms of media, including a combination of text, audio, still images, animation, video, and interactive content. These courses provide students with the opportunity to develop foundational skills and knowledge while they also become more adept in cinema, video, digital live production, and electronic time-based media. Students engage in critique of their multimedia work, that of others, and the multimedia video, digital, and live production work of artists for the purpose of reflecting on and refining work for presentation.

#### Film Photography

Photography courses provide students with an understanding of photographic media, techniques, and processes. These courses focus on development of photographic compositions through manipulation of the fundamental processes of artistic expression. Students may learn to make meaningful visual statements with an emphasis on personal creative expression to communicate ideas, feelings, or values. Photography courses may also include the history of photography, historic movements, image manipulation, critical analysis, and some creative special effects. Students engage in critiques of their photographic images, the works of other students, and those by professional photographers for the purpose of reflecting on and refining work.

#### IB Visual Arts I, II

IB Visual Arts courses encourage students to challenge their own creative and cultural expectations and boundaries. In these thought-provoking courses, students develop analytical skills in problem-solving and divergent thinking, while working towards technical proficiency and confidence as art-makers. In addition to exploring and comparing visual arts from different perspectives and in different contexts, students are expected to engage in, experiment with, and critically reflect upon a wide range of contemporary practices and media. Courses are designed for students who want to go on to study visual arts in higher education as well as for those who are seeking lifelong enrichment through visual arts.

Courses must be taken in sequence.

## Multimedia Crafts 1, 2, 3, 4

These courses help students apply fundamental processes of artistic expression to the materials and accompanying aesthetics of crafts. Students may explore types of folk art and the materials and ways in which objects have been created for practical, religious, spiritual, and cultural needs of people around the world. These courses may survey a wide range of crafts or may focus on only one type of craft; some possibilities include calligraphy, quilting, silk-screening, cake-decorating, tole-painting, mask-making, knitting, crocheting, paper-making, and so on. These courses may also explore aesthetic issues surrounding folk art and artists and engage in critiques of this authentic art form. Multimedia Crafts 4 students are highly skilled and can work independently.

## Photography 1, 2, 3, 4

Photography courses provide students with an understanding of photographic media, techniques, and processes. These courses focus on development of photographic compositions through manipulation of the fundamental processes of artistic expression. Students may learn to make meaningful visual statements with an emphasis on personal creative expression to communicate ideas, feelings, or values. Photography courses may also include the history of photography, historic movements, image manipulation, critical analysis, and some creative special effects. Students engage in critiques of their photographic images, the works of other students, and those by professional photographers for the purpose of reflecting on and refining work. Each subsequent course builds on the skills, processes and ideas explored in the previous level.

#### PVCC ART 121/122 Drawing I/II

Develops basic drawing skills and understanding of visual language through studio instruction/lecture. Introduces concepts such as proportion, space, perspective, tone, and composition as applied to still life, landscape, and the figure. Uses drawing media such as pencil, charcoal, ink wash, and color media. Includes field trips and gallery assignments as appropriate.

#### Visual Arts: Publishing and More

#### Audio Recording and Production 1, 2

Recording and Production courses provide students with an opportunity to learn and apply skills in music recording techniques, music editing, mixing, and creating finished musical recordings for distribution as sound files in order to enhance, convey, and capture the expressive intent of music.

Prerequisite: Audio Production 1 or instructor permission is required for Audio Production 2.

#### Creative Writing 1, 2, 3, 4

Creative Writing courses offer students the opportunity to develop and improve their technique and individual style in poetry, short story, drama, essays, and other forms of prose. The emphasis of the courses is on writing; however, students may study exemplary representations and authors to obtain a fuller appreciation of the form and craft. Although most creative writing classes cover several expressive forms, others concentrate exclusively on one particular form (such as poetry or playwriting).

## Film and Video Production 1, 2, 3, 4

These courses emphasize the application of the fundamental processes of artistic expression for the purpose of shooting and processing of the image. These courses include the history and development of cinema, television, and video production. Students explore a range of skills needed to explore contemporary social, cultural, and political issues and creatively solve problems within and through cinematic or video productions. Students engage in critiques of their cinematic or video productions, those of others, and productions of professional cinematographers or video artists for the purpose of reflecting on and refining work for presentation.

## Film Study/Filmmaking 1, 2, 3, 4

These courses examine specific topics in audio & video technology and film.

## Geometry and the Visual Arts

Students will discover how mathematics is related to art by studying examples of works of art from cultures around the world, examining the mathematical concepts and techniques underlying these works, and using graphic design software and other software tools to create original works of art employing these ideas and techniques. A tentative list of topics to be covered includes: recursion, symmetry transformations, perspective and projections, color mixing, the golden ratio, and sequences. Examples will be drawn from Asian, African and Arabic art, as well as European art.

#### IB Film I, II

At the core of the IB Film course lies a concern with clarity of understanding, critical thinking, reflective analysis, effective involvement, and imaginative synthesis that is achieved through practical engagement in the art and craft of film.

#### Journalism 1, 2, 3, 4

Journalism courses (typically associated with the production of a school newspaper, yearbook, or literary magazine) emphasize writing style and technique as well as production values and organization. Journalism courses introduce students to the concepts of newsworthiness and press responsibility; develop students' skills in writing and editing stories, headlines, and captions; and teach students the principles of production design, layout, and printing. Photography, photojournalism, and digital technology skills may be included.

#### Yearbook 1, 2, 3, 4

Publication Production courses provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to produce the school newspaper, yearbook, literary magazine, or other printed publication. Students may gain experience in several components (writing, editing, layout, production, and so on) or may focus on a single aspect while producing the publication.

# Health, Physical Education & Driver Education

Health, Physical Education (PE), and Driver Education combine a range of activities and topics involving human health issues, physical skills, and safe driving:

- · Human health coursework typically covers issues such as nutrition, stress management, drug/alcohol abuse prevention, and first aid.
- · PE coursework draws on team, individual, dual, recreational, and/or conditioning activities.
- Driver Education usually includes legal obligations and responsibilities, rules of the road and traffic procedures, safe driving strategies, and related topics.

## Health, PE & Driver Education Course Descriptions

## **Adaptive Physical Education**

Adaptive Physical Education is a modified physical education program designed to meet the individualized gross motor needs, or other disability-related challenges, of an identified student.

#### Dance 1, 2

Dance 1 serves as a dance fundamentals class using ballet, modern and jazz dance technique. Students will become proficient in genre specific warm up, preparatory exercises, and physical and creative skill, as well as the historic and cultural aspect of dance. Students will have the opportunity to experience, appreciate and evaluate dance performance.

In Dance 2, students integrate and build upon concepts and skills acquired in Dance I. Students will increase their range of physical skills through disciplined study of dance technique. Dance improvisation and composition studies will expand students' creativity and choreographic craftsmanship. They will also develop additional performance and production skills. Students will refine communicative, interpretive, and evaluative skills by responding to and analyzing a variety of dance experiences. Through historical and cultural studies, students will expand their appreciation of the dance arts as a richly expressive, vital contribution to society. While developing awareness of the diversity that exists within the art form, students will identify a personal aesthetic and criteria for evaluating the dance arts.

#### **Driver Education: Classroom Instruction**

Driver Education, Classroom Only, provides students with the knowledge to become safe drivers on America's roadways. Topics in these courses include legal obligations and responsibility, rules of the road and traffic procedures, safe driving strategies and practices, and the physical and mental factors affecting the driver's capability (including alcohol and other drugs).

#### Health Education 1, 2

Topics covered within Health Education may vary widely, but typically include personal health (nutrition, mental health and stress management, drug/alcohol abuse prevention, disease prevention, and first aid) and consumer health issues. This course may also include brief studies of environmental health, personal development, and/or community resources.

Prerequisite: Ninth-grade students must be 15 by September 1 and acquire counseling director approval to register for Health 2.

#### **IB Dance**

The course focuses on the composition, performance and analysis of dance, or "expressive movement," which is practiced amongst peoples of various backgrounds and for a variety of purposes throughout the world. Students create, participate in, and reflect upon dance forms and styles from a range of cultures and traditions, both familiar and unfamiliar.

Prerequisite: Dance 1

#### Physical Education 1, 2, 3, 4

Physical Education 1 and 2 provide students with knowledge, experience, and an opportunity to develop skills in more than one of the following sports or activities: team sports, individual/dual sports, recreational sports, and fitness/conditioning activities that help develop muscular strength, flexibility, and cardiovascular fitness.

Physical Education 3 and 4 emphasize acquiring knowledge and skills regarding lifetime physical fitness. Content may include related topics such as nutrition, stress management, and consumer issues. Students may develop and implement a personal fitness plan.

#### **PVCC HLT 125 Anatomy and Physiology for Exercise Science**

Presents basic principles of human anatomy and physiology including the body structure, systems and functions. The course provides a foundation to build and apply concepts in the study of Exercise Science, Group Fitness, Personal Training, and related fitness studies.

#### **Team Sports**

Team Sports provides to students the knowledge, experience and opportunity to develop skills in more than one team sport (such as volleyball, basketball, soccer, etc.).

#### Weight Training 1, 2, 3, 4

Weight Training helps students develop knowledge and skills with free weights and universal stations while emphasizing safety and proper body positioning; they may include other components such as anatomy and conditioning.

#### Yoga/Fitness 1, 2

Lifetime fitness education emphasizes acquiring knowledge and skills regarding lifetime physical fitness. Content may include related topics such as nutrition, stress management, and consumer issues. Students may develop and implement a personal fitness plan.

# **History & Social Science**

The study of history and social science is vital in promoting a civic-minded, democratic society. The National Council for Social Studies proposes that social studies courses support college, career and civic life readiness by focusing on planning inquiry, evaluating sources, using evidence in decision-making, communicating conclusions, and taking informed actions.

Courses in History and Social Science are designed to:

- Develop the knowledge and skills of history, geography, civics, and economics that enable students to place the people, ideas, and events that have shaped our state, nation, and world in perspective.
- · Support students in developing an understanding of diverse cultures, and of a shared humanity.
- Prepare students for informed, responsible, and participatory citizenship.
- Enhance students' ability to seek and recognize patterns and complex relationships such as change and continuity, conflict and cooperation, choice and consequence, and systems.
- · Develop students' skills in inquiry, debate, discussion, writing, and critical reading.

Social Studies offerings in high school provide students with several means to explore new disciplines and expand on their work K-8 through both required courses and electives. Social science courses introduce complex content and support the development of critical thinking skills that are essential for student success in and beyond school as students grow as lifelong learners.

# **History & Social Science Course Descriptions**

#### **African American History**

African American History is designed to provide students with a broad overview of the African American experience and explore ancient Africa moving through modern times. The course, supported by a local division curriculum and five online modules, address the introduction of Africans to the Americas and the African American experience between 1619 and the present. In addition, the course will highlight the social, cultural and political contributions of African Americans to American society.

## **AP Comparative Government**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level Comparative Government and Politics courses, these courses offer students an understanding of the world's diverse political structures and practices. The courses encompass the study of both specific countries and general concepts used to interpret the key political relationships found in virtually all national policies. Course content generally includes sovereignty, authority, and power; political institutions; the relationships among citizens, society, and the state; political and economic change; and public policy.

## **AP European History**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level European History courses, AP European History courses examine European civilization in four chronological periods, from 1450 to the present, and also expose students to the factual narrative. In addition, these courses help students develop an understanding of some of the principal themes in modern European history and the abilities to analyze historical evidence and to express that understanding and analysis in writing.

## **AP Human Geography**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level Human Geography courses, AP Human Geography introduces students to the systematic study of patterns and processes that have shaped the ways in which humans understand, use, and alter the earth's surface. Students use spatial concepts and landscape analysis to examine human social organization and its environmental consequences and also learn about the methods and tools geographers use in their science and practice.

## **AP Psychology**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel a college-level introductory psychology course, AP Psychology courses introduce students to the systematic and scientific study of the behavior and mental processes of human beings and other animals, expose students to each major subfield within psychology, and enable students to examine the methods and ethics that psychologists use in their science and practice.

#### **AP US Government & Politics**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level U.S. Government and Politics courses, these courses provide students with an analytical perspective on government and politics in the United States, involving both the study of general concepts used to interpret U.S. politics and the analysis of specific case studies and foundational documents. The courses generally cover foundations of American democracy, interaction among branches of government, political beliefs and behaviors, political participation, and civil rights and liberties.

# **AP US History**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level U.S. History courses, AP U.S. History courses provide students with the analytical skills and factual knowledge necessary to address critically problems and materials in U.S. history. Students learn to assess historical materials and to weigh the evidence and interpretations presented in historical scholarship. The course examines the discovery and settlement of the New World through the recent past.

# **AP World History**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level World History courses, AP World History: Modern courses examine world history from 1200 CE to the present with the aim of helping students make connections of historical evolution across times and places. These courses highlight the interaction between humans and the environment; development and interaction of cultures; state-building, expansion and conflict; creation, expansion and interaction of economic systems; development and transformation of social structures; and technology and innovation.

#### **Economics**

Economics courses provide students with an overview of economics with primary emphasis on the principles of microeconomics and the U.S. economic system. These courses may also cover topics such as principles of macroeconomics, international economics, and comparative economics. Economic principles may be presented in formal theoretical contexts, applied contexts, or both.

# **History Lab**

History Lab represents a hands-on "maker" approach to historical inquiry. Students will explore various topics in United States and World History through experiential processes and content creation, such as GIS, interactive exhibits, the creation of historical artifacts, interpretive displays (digital and "brick and mortar"), and other modes of content presentation.

# **History Through Film**

This course will use film/movies as a medium to investigate the history of the United States and the World. Students are asked to explore the boundaries between history and film. Movies and film are given the same analysis and interpretation as any other sources and used as a medium to learn about history. Specific focus is on "valid" historical films, offering glimpses into the social, political, and cultural moments when they were created. Students will examine ways in which films shape and influence understanding.

# Humanities 1, 2, 3

Humanities courses examine and evoke student responses to human creative efforts and the world in particular historical periods and in particular cultures. Course content includes exploration, analysis, synthesis, and various responses to cultural traditions, including viewing, listening, speaking, reading, writing, performing, and creating. The courses may also examine relationships among painting, sculpture, architecture, and music.

# **IB Environmental Systems & Societies**

Through studying environmental systems and societies, students will be provided with a coherent perspective of the interrelationships between environmental systems and societies, one that enables them to adopt an informed personal response to the wide range of pressing environmental issues that they will inevitably come to face.

# **IB History 11, 12**

IB History 11 and 12 are world history courses based on a comparative, multi-perspective approach to history and focused around key historical concepts such as change, causation and significance. The courses involve the study of a variety of types of history, including political, economic, social and cultural, encouraging students to think historically and to develop historical skills. In this way, the courses involve a challenging and demanding critical exploration of the past.

IB History requires students to study and compare examples from different regions of the world, helping to foster international mindedness. Teachers have a great deal of freedom to choose relevant examples to explore with their students, helping to ensure that the course meets their students' needs and interests regardless of their location or context.

Courses must be taken in sequence.

#### **IB Philosophy**

Philosophy is a systematic critical inquiry into profound, fascinating and challenging questions, such as: What is it to be human? Do we have free will? What do we mean when we say something is right or wrong? These abstract questions arise out of our everyday experiences, and philosophical tools such as critical and systematic thinking, careful analysis, and construction of arguments provide the means of addressing such questions. The practice of philosophy deepens and clarifies our understanding of these questions, as well as our ability to formulate possible responses.

# IB Theory of Knowledge I

As a thoughtful and purposeful inquiry into different ways of knowing and different kinds of knowledge, this course is composed almost entirely of questions. The most central of these is: How do we know? Other questions include: What counts as evidence for X? How do we judge which is the best model of Y? What does theory Z mean in the real world? Through discussions of these and other questions, students gain greater awareness of their personal and ideological assumptions and develop an appreciation of the diversity and richness of cultural perspectives.

#### Issues of the Modern World

This is an elective course recommended for students who are interested in the study of current events and recent American and world history. Topics, will be discussed, explored, researched, and analyzed using readings (newspaper articles, academic journals), internet research, films (feature and documentary), broadcast news reports, and class discussions. Topics may include: modern terrorism; the modern global economy (globalization); the environment; America's "culture wars;" gun control; the modern Middle East; problems and issues in American foreign policy; and more.

# **Leadership 1, 2, 3, 4**

Leadership/SCA at is a one-year elective course designed to prepare students for and offer students leadership opportunities in high school, the community, college and in the work environment. The course offers students with experiential opportunities to foster a variety of essential skills such as communication, organization, goal setting, collaboration, event planning, time management, public speaking, and critical thinking. The purpose of associated student body leadership is to plan and implement activities that not only serve but also enrich the student body, the staff, and the community.

# **Philosophy**

Philosophy courses introduce students to the discipline of philosophy as a way to analyze the principles underlying conduct, thought, knowledge, and the nature of the universe. Course content typically includes examination of the major philosophers and their writings.

#### **Practical Law**

This course provides the high school student with the practical legal background one needs to function as an adult. It enables the young adult to foresee and avoid legal problems and to obtain professional help when necessary. Topics covered include contracts, property, marriage, wills, civil and criminal procedure, and consumer protection.

# **Psychology**

Psychology courses introduce students to the study of individual human behavior. Course content typically includes (but is not limited to) an overview of the field of psychology, topics in human growth and development, personality and behavior, and abnormal psychology.

# **Psychology Applications & Research**

This course provides students the opportunity to continue their study of topics introduced in AP Psychology with added emphasis on independent research and the study of current advances in the field. Students will form research groups that select one general topic (e.g., learning, developmental psychology, social psychology) each quarter to study in greater depth. They will then narrow their focus to a specific application and will conduct research using one of the methods psychologists typically employ (e.g., observation, survey, field or lab experiments.) The groups will collect data, analyze the results, and report their findings following the American Psychological Association guidelines.

#### **PVCC ECON 201 Macroeconomics**

Macroeconomics introduces macroeconomics including the study of Keynesian, classical, monetarist principles and theories, the study of national economic growth, inflation, recession, unemployment, financial markets, money and banking, the role of government spending and taxation, along with international trade and investments.

#### **PVCC ECON 202 Microeconomics**

Microeconomics introduces the basic concepts of microeconomics. Explores the free market concepts with coverage of economic models and graphs, scarcity and choices, supply and demand, elasticities, marginal benefits and costs, profits, and production and distribution.

# **PVCC GEO 210 Cultural Geography**

Cultural Geography focuses on the relationship between culture and geography. The course presents a survey of modern demographics, landscape modification, material and non-material culture, language, race and ethnicity, religion, politics, and economic activities. The course introduces the student to types and uses of maps. It also is the study of the landscape on which human activity occurs. In addition to basic geography concepts, map reading, and the current state of the world, this course will introduce students to the historical and contemporary patterns and processes that are shaping our world. A major focus of this course is the examination of the cultural landscapes resulting from human modification of the environment. This will include the study of the geographic distribution of non-material culture, including language, religion, ethnicity, and political behavior. Another focus is human modes of survival, including agriculture, urban environments, and economic activities.

# **PVCC HIS 121/122 US History**

These courses survey United States history from its beginnings to the present.

#### **PVCC PHI 220 Ethics**

Provides a systematic study of representative ethical systems.

## PVCC PLS 135/136 US, State & Local Government

These courses teach structure, operation, and the process of national, state, and local governments. Courses include in-depth study of the three branches of government and public policy.

# PVCC PSY 200/230 Principles of Psychology/Developmental Psychology

PSY 200 surveys the basic concepts of psychology. It covers the scientific study of behavior, including behavioral research methods, analysis, and theoretical interpretations. Included are topics that cover physiological mechanisms, sensation/perception, motivation, learning, personality, psychopathology, therapy, and social psychology.

PSY 230 allows students the opportunity to study the development of the individual from conception to birth. It follows a life-span perspective on the development of the person's physical, cognitive and psychosocial growth.

If taken as a year-long course, PSY 200 is offered in the fall and PSY 230 is offered in the spring. The year-long course fulfills general education requirements for students interested in earning their Associate of Applied Science Degree in Diagnostic Medical Sonography or Nursing at PVCC.

# Sociology

Sociology courses introduce students to the study of human behavior in society. These courses provide an overview of sociology, generally including (but not limited to) topics such as social institutions and norms, socialization and social change, and the relationships among individuals and groups in society.

#### **VA/US Government**

Course provides a comprehensive overview of the structure and functions of the U.S. government and political institutions and examine constitutional principles, the concepts of rights and responsibilities, the role of political parties and interest groups, and the importance of civic participation in the democratic process. Students may examine the structure and function of state and local governments and may cover certain economic and legal topics.

#### **Women's Studies**

Students will study history, literature, film and sociology related to Women's Studies. Students will understand the historical and modern roles and contributions of women. Students will analyze the changing issues related to women and discuss the perspectives of women. Students also will focus on women's leadership and consider solutions that will promote women leaders of a variety of perspectives.

# **World Geography**

World Geography courses provide students with an overview of world geography, but may vary widely in the topics they cover. Topics typically include the physical environment; the political landscape; the relationship between people and the land; economic production and development; and the movement of people, goods, and ideas.

# World History 1500 to the Present

Modern World History courses provide an overview of the history of human society in the past few centuries—from the Renaissance period, or later, to the contemporary period—exploring political, economic, social, religious, military, scientific, and cultural developments.

# World History to 1500

Overview courses provide students with an overview of the history of human society from early civilization to the contemporary period, examining political, economic, social, religious, military, scientific, and cultural developments. World History—Overview courses may include geographical studies, but often these components are not as explicitly taught as geography.

# **Mathematics**

Students today require more rigorous mathematical knowledge and skills to pursue higher education, to compete in a technologically sophisticated and connected workforce, and to be informed citizens. By taking a concept-centered approach to instruction and utilizing our K-12 essential standards, teachers help build capacity in students to make connections across content areas. This approach will help students gain an understanding of fundamental ideas in arithmetic, measurement, geometry, probability, data analysis and statistics, and algebra and functions while developing proficiency in mathematical skills.

Students also will learn to use a variety of methods and tools to compute, including paper and pencil, mental arithmetic, estimation, and calculators. Graphing utilities, spreadsheets, calculators, computers, and other forms of electronic information technology are now standard tools for mathematical problem-solving in science, engineering, business and industry, government, and practical everyday affairs; therefore, the use of technology must be an integral part of teaching, learning, and assessment.

Courses in mathematics are designed to build students' ability to:

- Analyze situations in mathematical terms, and pose and solve problems based on observed situations.
- · Select and use various types of reasoning to develop and evaluate mathematical arguments and proof.
- · Organize and consolidate mathematical thinking through precise verbal, written and graphical communication.
- Understand how mathematical ideas interconnect and build on one another to produce a coherent whole.
- Use representations to model and interpret physical, social and mathematical phenomena.
- · Evaluate and use technology appropriately as a tool to support and apply the problem-solving process.

# **Mathematics Course Descriptions**

# **Algebra 1, 2, 3**

Algebra 1 includes the study of properties and operations of the real number system; evaluating rational algebraic expressions; solving and graphing first-degree equations and inequalities; translating word problems into equations; operations with and factoring of polynomials; and solving simple quadratic equations.

Algebra 2 topics typically include field properties and theorems; set theory; operations with rational and irrational expressions; factoring of rational expressions; in-depth study of linear equations and inequalities; quadratic equations; solving systems of linear and quadratic equations; graphing of constant, linear, and quadratic equations; properties of higher-degree equations; and operations with rational and irrational exponents.

Algebra 3 courses review and extend algebraic concepts for students who have already taken Algebra 2. Course topics include, but are not limited to, operations with rational and irrational expressions; factoring of rational expressions; linear equations and inequalities; quadratic equations; solving systems of linear and quadratic equations; properties of higher-degree equations; and operations with rational and irrational exponents. The courses may introduce topics in discrete mathematics, elementary probability and statistics, matrices and determinants, and sequences and series.

# Algebra 1: Part 1, Part 2

Algebra 1, Part 1 is the first part in a multipart sequence of Algebra 1. This course generally covers the same topics as the first semester of Algebra 1, including the study of properties of rational numbers (i.e., number theory), ratio, proportion, and estimation, exponents and radicals, the rectangular coordinate system, sets and logic, formulas, and solving first-degree equations and inequalities.

Algebra 1, Part 2 is the second part in a multipart sequence of Algebra 1. This course generally covers the same topics as the second semester of Algebra 1, including the study of properties of the real number system and operations, evaluating rational algebraic expressions, solving and graphing first-degree equations and inequalities, translating word problems into equations, operations with and factoring of polynomials, and solving simple quadratics.

# Algebra 2/Trigonometry

Algebra 2/Trigonometry courses combine trigonometry and advanced algebra topics and are usually intended for students who have attained Algebra 1 and Geometry objectives. Topics typically include right trigonometric and circular functions, inverses, and graphs; trigonometric identities and equations; solutions of right and oblique triangles; complex numbers; numerical tables; field properties and theorems; set theory; operations with rational and irrational expressions; factoring of rational expressions; in-depth study of linear equations and inequalities; quadratic equations; solving systems of linear and quadratic equations; graphing of constant, linear and quadratic equations; and properties of higher-degree equations.

# **Algebra Functions Data Analysis**

Within the context of mathematical modeling and data analysis, students will study functions and their behaviors, systems of inequalities, probability, experimental design and implementation, and analysis of data.

#### **AP Calculus AB**

Following the College Board's suggested curriculum designed to parallel college-level calculus courses, AP Calculus AB provides students with an understanding of the concepts of calculus and experience with its methods and applications. These courses introduce calculus and include the following topics: functions, graphs, limits, and continuity; differential calculus (including definition, application, and computation of the derivative; derivative at a point; derivative as a function; and second derivatives); and integral calculus (including definite integrals and antidifferentiation).

#### **AP Calculus BC**

AP Calculus BC applies the content and skills learned in AP Calculus AB to parametrically defined curves, polar curves, and vector-valued functions; develops additional integration techniques and applications; and introduces the topics of sequences and series.

#### **AP Statistics**

AP Statistics is an introductory college-level statistics course that introduces students to the major concepts and tools for collecting, analyzing and drawing conclusions from data. Students cultivate their understanding of statistics using technology, investigations, problem solving, and writing as they explore concepts like variation and distribution; patterns and uncertainty; and data-based predictions, decisions and conclusions.

# **Computer Mathematics**

This course is intended to provide students with experiences using computer programming techniques and skills to solve problems that can be set up as mathematical models. Students enrolled in Computer Mathematics are assumed to have studied the concepts and skills in Algebra 1 and beginning geometry.

Prerequisite: Algebra 1

#### **Consumer Math**

Consumer Mathematics courses reinforce general mathematics topics (such as arithmetic using rational numbers, measurement, ratio and proportion, and basic statistics) and apply these skills to consumer problems and situations. Applications typically include budgeting, taxation, credit, banking services, insurance, buying and selling products and services, home and/or car ownership and rental, managing personal income, and investment.

# **Geometry**

Geometry courses, emphasizing an abstract, formal approach to the study of geometry, typically include topics such as properties of plane and solid figures; deductive methods of reasoning and use of logic; geometry as an axiomatic system including the study of postulates, theorems, and formal proofs; concepts of congruence, similarity, parallelism, perpendicularity, and proportion; and rules of angle measurement in triangles.

# **Geometry and the Visual Arts**

Students will discover how mathematics is related to art by studying examples of works of art from cultures around the world, examining the mathematical concepts and techniques underlying these works, and using graphic design software and other software tools to create original works of art employing these ideas and techniques. A tentative list of topics to be covered includes: recursion, symmetry transformations, perspective and projections, color mixing, the golden ratio, and sequences. Examples will be drawn from Asian. African and Arabic art, as well as European art.

# IB Math: Analysis and Approaches I

This course focuses on developing important mathematical concepts in a coherent and rigorous way, with an emphasis on communication and independent inquiry. The course reviews the fundamentals of algebra, geometry and trigonometry, before delving into an in-depth investigation of statistics and single-variable calculus.

# IB Math: Applications and Interpretations I, II

The course focuses on introducing important mathematical concepts with an emphasis on statistics and introductory calculus. Instruction will focus on the application of mathematics to real-world phenomena and the interpretation of advanced mathematical notions in terms of concrete scenarios.

Prerequisites: Trigonometry/Math Analysis

# **Mathematical Analysis**

Students enrolled in Mathematical Analysis are assumed to have mastered geometry and Algebra 2 concepts. Mathematical Analysis develops students' understanding of algebraic and transcendental functions, parametric and polar equations, sequences and series, and vectors. The content of this course serves as appropriate preparation for a calculus course.

# **Probability & Statistics**

Probability and Statistics courses introduce the study of likely events and the analysis, interpretation, and presentation of quantitative data. Course topics generally include basic probability and statistics: discrete probability theory, odds and probabilities, probability trees, populations and samples, frequency tables, measures of central tendency, and presentation of data (including graphs). Course topics may also include normal distribution and measures of variability.

# **PVCC MTH 154/155 Quantitative Reasoning/Statistics**

PVCC MTH 154 Quantitative Reasoning presents topics in proportional reasoning, modeling, financial literacy, and validity studies (logic and set theory). Focuses on the process of taking a real-world situation, identifying the mathematical foundation needed to address the problem, solving the problem, and applying what is learned to the original situation. This is a Passport Transfer course.

PVCC MTH 155 Statistics presents elementary statistical methods and concepts including visual data presentation, descriptive statistics, probability, estimation, hypothesis testing, correlation, and linear regression. Emphasis is placed on the development of statistical thinking, simulation, and the use of statistical software. This is a Passport Transfer course.

Prerequisite: Algebra II

# PVCC MTH 161/261 PreCalculus I/Applied Calculus I

MTH 161 PreCalculus I presents topics in power, polynomial, rational, exponential, and logarithmic functions, and systems of equations and inequalities. Credit will not be awarded for both MTH 161: Precalculus I and MTH 167: Precalculus with Trigonometry or equivalent. This is a Passport Transfer course.

MTH 261 Applied Calculus I introduces limits, continuity, differentiation and integration of algebraic, exponential and logarithmic functions, and techniques of integration with an emphasis on applications in business, social sciences and life sciences. This is a Passport Transfer course.

# **PVCC MTH 265/267 Calculus III/Differential Equations**

MTH 265 Calculus III focuses on extending the concepts of function, limit, continuity, derivative, integral and vector from the plane to the three-dimensional space. Topics include vector functions, multivariate functions, partial derivatives, multiple integrals, and an introduction to vector calculus. Designed for mathematical, physical and engineering science programs.

MTH 267 Differential Equations introduces ordinary differential equations. Includes first order differential equations, second and higher order ordinary differential equations with applications, and numerical methods.

# Skills Development Math 1, 2, 3

This is an individualized and comprehensive course that covers the concepts and skills necessary to be successful in Algebra 1.

# **Science**

# **Science and Engineering Practices**

Science utilizes observation and experimentation along with existing scientific knowledge, mathematics, and engineering technologies to answer questions about the natural world. Engineering employs existing scientific knowledge, mathematics, and technology to create, design and develop new devices, objects or technology to meet the needs of society. By utilizing both scientific and engineering practices in the science classroom, students develop a deeper understanding and competence with techniques at the heart of each discipline.

High school science offerings provide students with multiple contexts in which to explore new disciplines and expand on their K-8 work through both required courses and electives. Science courses introduce complex content and support the development of critical thinking skills that are essential for student success in and beyond school as students grow as lifelong learners.

# **Engineering Design Process**

- 1. Define: Define the problem, ask a question.
- 2. Imagine: Brainstorm possible solutions.
- 3. Research: Research the problem to determine the feasibility of possible solutions.
- 4. Plan: Plan a device/model to address the problem or answer the question.
- 5. Build: Build a device/model to address the problem or answer the guestion.
- 6. Test: Test the device/model in a series of trials:

Does the design meet the criteria and constraints defined in the problem?

- Yes? Go to Share (#8).
- No? Go to Improve (#7).
- 7. Improve: Using the results of the test, brainstorm improvements to the device/model; return to #3.
- 8. Share: Communicate your results to stakeholders and the public.

# **Science Course Descriptions**

# **Analytical Lab Investigations**

The course provides an opportunity for students to focus on investigations across a wide range of science topics, with the goal of entering science fairs and similar competitions. Similar to a maker space focused on science, students will design, conduct and present laboratory investigations. This course is open to all students who wish to explore independent work in the science field.

# **AP Biology**

AP Biology courses emphasize four general concepts: evolution; cellular processes (energy and communication); genetics and information transfer; and interactions of biological systems. For each concept, these courses emphasize the development of scientific inquiry and reasoning skills, such as designing a plan for collecting data, analyzing data, applying mathematical routines, and connecting concepts in and across domains. AP Biology courses include college-level laboratory investigations.

# **AP Chemistry**

Concepts covered may include the structure of matter; bonding of intermolecular forces; chemical reactions; kinetics; thermodynamics; and chemical equilibrium. For each concept, these courses emphasize the development of scientific inquiry and reasoning skills, such as designing a plan for collecting data, analyzing data, applying mathematical routines, and connecting concepts in and across domains. AP Chemistry courses include college-level laboratory investigations.

Prerequisites: High school chemistry and Algebra 2 recommended

#### **AP Environmental Science**

AP Environmental Science courses are designed by the College Board to provide students with the scientific principles, concepts, and methodologies required to understand the interrelationships of the natural world, identify and analyze environmental problems (both natural and human made), evaluate the relative risks associated with the problems, and examine alternative solutions for resolving and/or preventing them. Topics covered include science as a process, ecological processes and energy conversions, earth as an interconnected system, the impact of humans on natural systems, cultural and societal contexts of environmental problems, and the development of practices that will ensure sustainable systems.

# AP Physics 1, 2

AP Physics 1 focuses on Newtonian mechanics, including rotational motion; work, energy and power; mechanical waves and sound; and introductory circuits. AP Physics 2 covers fluid statics and dynamics; thermodynamics with kinetic theory; PV diagrams and probability; electrostatics; electrical circuits with capacitors; magnetic fields; electromagnetism; physical and geometric optics; and quantum, atomic and nuclear physics. These courses, which were designed by the College Board to parallel first-semester college-level courses in algebra-based physics, may also include college-level laboratory investigations.

# **AP Physics C: Electricity and Magnetism**

AP Physics C: Electricity and Magnetism courses focus on electricity and magnetism, including topics such as electrostatics; conductors, capacitors, and dielectrics; electric circuits; magnetic fields; and electromagnetism. This course is designed by the College Board to parallel college-level physics courses that serve as a partial foundation for science or engineering majors. Requires the use of calculus to solve problems posed.

# **AP Physics C: Mechanics**

AP Physics C: Mechanics courses focus on classical mechanics, including topics in kinematics; Newton's laws of motion; work, energy, and power; systems of particles and linear momentum; circular motion and rotation; oscillations; and gravitation. This course is designed by the College Board to parallel college-level physics courses that serve as a partial foundation for science or engineering majors. Requires the use of calculus to solve problems posed.

# **Astronomy**

Astronomy courses offer students the opportunity to study the solar system, stars, galaxies, and interstellar bodies. These courses usually introduce and use astronomic instruments and typically explore theories regarding the origin and evolution of the universe, space, and time.

# **Biology 1**

Biology courses are designed to provide information regarding the fundamental concepts of life and life processes. These courses include (but are not restricted to) such topics as cell structure and function, general plant and animal physiology, genetics, and taxonomy.

# **Biology 2: Anatomy & Physiology**

Anatomy and Physiology courses present the human body and biological systems in more detail. In order to understand the structure of the human body and its functions, students learn anatomical terminology, study cells and tissues, explore functional systems (skeletal, muscular, circulatory, respiratory, digestive, reproductive, nervous, and so on), and may dissect mammals.

Prerequisite: Comprehensive initial study of biology recommended

# **Biology 2: Animal Studies**

This course is an introduction to the world of Zoology designed for 11th and 12th grade students. Students will survey the animal world from protists through chordates. Using a comparative approach, the study of each group will emphasize diversity, anatomy, evolutionary relationships, functional adaptations, and environmental relationships. Extensive lab work, including dissections, will be an integral part of the course.

# **Chemistry 1**

Chemistry courses involve studying the composition, properties, and reactions of substances. These courses typically explore such concepts as the behaviors of solids, liquids, and gases; acid/base and oxidation/reduction reactions; and atomic structure. Chemical formulas and equations and nuclear reactions are also studied.

#### **Earth Science**

Earth Science courses offer insight into the environment on earth and the earth's environment in space. While presenting the concepts and principles essential to students' understanding of the dynamics and history of the earth, these courses usually explore oceanography, geology, astronomy, meteorology, and geography.

# **Earth Science 2: Geology**

Geology courses provide an in-depth study of the forces that formed and continue to affect the earth's surface. Earthquakes, volcanoes, and erosion are examples of topics that are presented.

## **Earth Science 2: Oceanography**

Courses in Marine Science focus on the content, features, and possibilities of the earth's oceans. They explore marine organisms, conditions, and ecology and sometimes cover marine mining, farming, and exploration.

# **Ecology**

Ecology is a laboratory science from the biology discipline dealing with the interrelationships of living things and their environments. Major topics include energy flow, bio-geochemical cycles, biotic and abiotic influences on communities of living things, population dynamics, and an in-depth study of aquatic and terrestrial ecosystem pollution.

#### **Horticulture 1**

This course combines an introduction to plant systems, taxonomy, anatomy, introductory botany, basic horticulture, and greenhouse management. Our concentration is on the growth, identification, classification and reproduction of various plant families. We will use the lens of a botanist to learn about these topics. Throughout this curriculum, students will learn some basic knowledge of horticulture, the tools and skills needed in this industry, and the environmental impact of cultivating plants. The focus for Horticulture 1 will be vegetable, herb gardening, seed propagation, pollination, and flowers.

# IB Biology I, II

IB Biology I and II investigate the fundamental topics of biology, including cell biology, molecular biology, genetics, and evolution through laboratory investigations and individual student research.

Prerequisites: Biology 1 is a prerequisite for IB Biology I; IB Biology I is a prerequisite for IB Biology II.

# **IB Environmental Systems and Societies**

Through studying environmental systems and societies, students will be provided with a coherent perspective of the interrelationships between environmental systems and societies, one that enables them to adopt an informed personal response to the wide range of pressing environmental issues that they will inevitably come to face.

# Physics 1

Physics courses involve the study of the forces and laws of nature affecting matter, such as equilibrium, motion, momentum, and the relationships between matter and energy. The study of physics includes examination of sound, light, and magnetic and electric phenomena.

These courses explore fundamental characteristics of living matter from the molecular level to the ecological community with emphasis on general biological principles. Students are introduced to the diversity of living organisms, their structure, function, and evolution.

Prerequisites: Completed MTE 1-9 or placement test score equivalent or SAT math score of 520 or greater or ACT math score of 22 or greater and placement into ENF3/ENG 111

# **PVCC BIO 107 Biology of the Environment**

BIO 107 presents the basic concepts of environmental science through a topical approach. Includes the scientific method, population growth, and migration, use of natural resources and waste management, ecosystem simplification recovery, evolution, biogeochemical cycles, photosynthesis and global warming, geological formations, atmosphere and climate, and ozone depletion and acid deposition.

Prerequisites: VPT placement into ENF 3 or SAT Critical Reading score of 500 or greater or ACT score of 21 or greater and completion of MTE 1-5 or placement test score equivalent

# PVCC CHM 101 Introduction to Chemistry

Emphasizes experimental and theoretical aspects of inorganic, organic and biological chemistry. Discusses general chemistry concepts as they apply to issues within our society and environment.

# **PVCC CHM 111 College Chemistry I**

Explores the fundamental laws, theories, and mathematical concepts of chemistry. Designed primarily for science and engineering majors.

Prerequisites: MTH 163 or MTH 167 is a prerequisite or corequisite for CHM 111; CHM 111 Lab is a corequisite for CHM 111.

# **PVCC GOL 105 Physical Geology**

Introduces the composition and structure of the earth and modifying agents and processes. Investigates the formation of minerals and rocks, weathering, erosion, earthquakes, and crustal deformation.

# **PVCC GOL 106 Historical Geology**

Traces the evolution of the earth and life through time. Presents scientific theories of the origin of the earth and life and interprets rock and fossil record.

# **PVCC NAS 131/132 Astronomy**

This is an introductory astronomy course that emphasizes concepts rather than mathematics. The course is designed for non-science majors and there are no math prerequisites. The main goal of this course is for students to understand and appreciate the nature of science through the study of astronomy. After completing this class, students will have achieved basic understanding of: scientific method, patterns in the night sky, motion, energy, gravity, and light, telescopes, our solar system, nature of stars and galaxies, birth and death of stars, theories on beginning and end of the universe, and properties of planets beyond our solar system. Remote observatory viewing may be scheduled according to availability and time allowance.

Corequisite: NAS 131/132 lab

# **PVCC PHY 201 General College Physics**

Teaches fundamental principles of physics. Covers mechanics, thermodynamics, wave phenomena, electricity and magnetism, and selected topics in modern physics.

Prerequisite: MTH 164

# **Special Education**

ACPS is committed to providing all children with opportunities to benefit from a public education. Special education programs and services are available to county residents who have children with special educational needs. These programs and services are provided for children with disabilities whose second birthday falls on or before September 30 through the age of 21 years. Each student receives special education services designed to meet his or her individual needs. These programs are discussed and planned by school personnel and the parents and student involved. Often instruction is carried out both in regular and special education classrooms.

Each special education student's progress is reviewed at least yearly and their need for special services is reassessed at a minimum of every three years. Special education programs and services are provided by trained personnel in the following areas of disability as defined by federal and state law: Autism, deaf-blindness, developmental delay, emotional disability, hearing impairment (including deafness), intellectual disability, multiple disabilities, orthopedic impairment, other health impairment, specific learning disability, speech or language impairment, traumatic brain injury, or visual impairment (including blindness).

## **Special Education Course Delivery Models**

#### **CONSULTATION/MONITOR**

The Special Education Department offers support to students in mainstream classes through consultation with regular education teachers, monitoring of the student's performance, and direct assistance on an as-needed basis.

#### STUDY SKILLS

Direct assistance is available for a variety of student needs including the following: test-taking, homework and make-up work, project/research paper development, and organization and study skills. This class is designed for students in creditbearing classes.

#### **COLLABORATIVE CLASSES**

Regular and special education teachers work together to teach core subjects.

#### DEPARTMENTALIZED MODEL/SELF-CONTAINED CORE CLASSES

These classes are taught at the standard level by special education teachers. They are intended for students with significant levels of need such that they would not be successful in collaborative classes. In order for students to be enrolled in these departmentalized classes, need and placement must be documented through the IEP process. Small group and/or individualized instruction is provided in a setting where several content areas are being taught simultaneously. Students in these classes take the designated SOL tests, if appropriate.

#### DEPARTMENTALIZED MODEL/SELF-CONTAINED ELECTIVE CLASSES

These classes are taught by special education teachers. They are intended for students with significant levels of need such that they would not be successful in collaborative classes. In order for students to be enrolled in these departmentalized classes, need and placement must be documented through the IEP process. Small group and/or individualized instruction is provided in a setting where several content areas are being taught simultaneously.

# **Special Education Course Descriptions**

# Community Life/Living

Community Living courses place a special emphasis on the student's relationship to the surrounding community. Instruction varies with the students and their needs; however, these courses provide the skills necessary for independent functioning within the surrounding environment. Course topics may also include available community resources and how to access them, emergency skills, and independent living strategies.

# **Functional Skills Writing & Communication**

Communication Instruction courses are typically individualized according to each student's condition and needs. Increasing the student's communication skills—oral expression, listening comprehension, reading, and writing—is emphasized; communication techniques in several areas (educational, social and vocational) are often explored.

#### Life/Social Skills

Social Development Instruction courses teach students the social skills needed for independent functioning with the community. Topics may include self-control, self-expression, obeying rules, decision-making, appropriate situational behavior, interacting with others, and maintaining relationships. Students may develop independence, self-confidence, and self-reliance.

#### Resource

Tutorial courses provide students with the assistance they need to successfully complete their coursework. Students may receive help in one or several subjects.

#### **Kevin Kirst**

Executive Director of Special Education and Student Services Division Section 504 / ADA Coordinator for Student Services 434-296-5885

# **World Languages**

Languages are at the heart of what makes us human, allowing us to express thoughts and ideas, meet new people, and expand our world. Being multilingual improves attention, creativity, self-control, and organization. Multilingual students are better prepared to succeed in a global economy, connect across cultures, and be the problem-solvers our communities need to meet their greatest civic, social and economic potential. As a result of their study in the World Languages program, students will:

- · Improve their communication skills across all languages;
- · Enhance their cultural understanding of themselves and others;
- · Expand their access to information; and
- · Gain a global perspective.

# **World Languages Program Areas & Course Descriptions**

#### **French**

# **AP French Language**

The purpose of this class is to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement test for college credit. The emphasis is on listening to native speakers, reading literature intended for native speakers, writing compositions several paragraphs in length, and orally communicating facts and ideas. A thorough review of grammar is an integral part of this course.

## French 1, 2, 3, 4

Students in French 1 will learn to listen, speak, read, and write in the language through a study of cultures that use the language as part of their heritage. Students will learn basic vocabulary and essential grammar to communicate in simple sentences and navigate real-world experiences. Students will practice basic literacy and gain insight into the way of life of cultures associated with the language.

French 2 continues to build on skills learned in the first year of the language. Students continue to work towards proficiency in all five-language skills: listening, reading, writing, studying culture, and a special emphasis on speaking.

Conducted almost entirely in the target language, French 3 refines speaking, reading, and writing skills as it emphasizes vocabulary building. There is also intense grammar work in preparation for standardized tests that are encountered in the upper levels of the target language. Culture, geography, and history are included.

French 4 is conducted exclusively in the target language. As an honors course, it places great responsibility for progress on the student. Students are expected to engage in self-instruction, independent work, readings, projects, and research. Emphasis is on communication skills and competency in the language. Literature and culture are studied and grammar is reviewed. Students are prepared for the SAT II Test.

#### German

# **AP German Language**

This class prepares students to take the Advanced Placement test for college credit. The emphasis is on listening to native speakers, reading literature intended for native speakers, writing compositions, and communicating orally. A thorough review of grammar is an integral part of this course.

# German 1, 2, 3, 4

The purpose of German 1 is to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement test for college credit. The emphasis is on listening to native speakers, reading literature intended for native speakers, writing compositions several paragraphs in length, and orally communicating facts and ideas. A thorough review of grammar is an integral part of this course.

German 2 continues to build on skills learned in the first year of the language. Students continue to work towards proficiency in all five language skills: listening, reading, writing, studying culture, and a special emphasis on speaking.

Conducted entirely in the target language, German 3 refines speaking, reading, and writing skills as it emphasizes vocabulary building. There is also intense grammar work in preparation for standardized tests that are encountered in the upper levels of the target language. Culture, geography, and history are included.

German 4 is conducted exclusively in the target language. As an honors course, it places great responsibility for progress on the student. Students are expected to engage in self-instruction, independent work, readings, projects, and research. Emphasis is on communication skills and competency in the language. Literature and culture are studied and grammar is reviewed. Students are prepared for the SAT II Test. German IV has an AP option.

#### Latin

#### **AP Latin**

The purpose of this class is to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement test for college credit.

#### Latin 1, 2, 3, 4

Through elementary readings and sentences, students in Latin 1 learn how the Latin language operates and how English grammar and vocabulary stem from it. Students learn the inflections, rules of syntax, and vocabulary needed for the comprehension and translation of simple Latin stories. Other activities include English to Latin translation, both oral and written; word study (derivatives and formation of words); and discussion of Roman civilization and mythology.

In the first half of Latin 2, students review Latin I (if needed). Stories about Roman life and customs are translated in the second half of Latin II. Emphasis on vocabulary and word study is continued and an understanding and appreciation of the history and civilization of Rome is gained through various readings.

Latin 3 students will read selections from various texts including Pliny, Aulus Gellius, Apuleius and/or passages in Medieval Latin. Emphasis is placed on acquiring an understanding of Roman culture and an appreciation of Roman literature and on developing an increased English vocabulary through observing derivations. Studies in rhetoric and classical philosophy provide students with a valuable background for collegiate scholarship.

Latin 4 provides an in-depth study of the poetry of Virgil, Ovid, Catullus, Horace, and/or Martial. Mythology, Roman history, poetic devices, and linguistic forms peculiar to poetry are studied. This course may be offered in alternate years.

Prerequisite: Latin 1 students should possess good knowledge of English grammar.

# **Spanish**

# **AP Spanish Language**

This class is to prepare students to take the Advanced Placement test for college credit. The emphasis is on listening to native speakers, reading literature intended for native speakers, writing compositions several paragraphs in length, and orally communicating facts and ideas. A thorough review of grammar is an integral part of this course.

# **AP Spanish Literature**

This AP Spanish Literature course is comparable to a third-year college introduction to Hispanic literature course. The required reading list of literary significance represents various historical periods, literary movements, genres, geographic areas, and groups within the Spanish-speaking world. The course will help students to interpret and analyze literature in Spanish.

# IB Spanish IV, V

IB Spanish aims to develop students' intercultural understanding; enable students to understand and use the language they have studied in a range of contexts and for a variety of purposes; encourage, through the study of texts and social interaction, an awareness and appreciation of the different perspectives of people from other cultures; develop students' awareness of the role of language in relation to other areas of knowledge; develop students' awareness of the relationship between the languages and cultures with which they are familiar; provide students with a basis for further study, work and leisure through the use of an additional language; and provide the opportunity for enjoyment, creativity, and intellectual stimulation through knowledge of an additional language.

Prerequisite: Spanish 3 or equivalent

# Spanish 1, 2, 3, 4

Students in Spanish 1 will learn to listen, speak, read, and write in the language through a study of cultures that use the language as part of their heritage. Students will learn basic vocabulary and essential grammar to communicate in simple sentences and navigate real-world experiences. Students will practice basic literacy and gain insight into the way of life of cultures associated with the language.

Spanish 2 continues to build on skills learned in the first year of the language. Students continue to work towards proficiency in all five-language skills: listening, reading, writing, studying culture, and a special emphasis on speaking.

Conducted almost entirely in the target language, Spanish 3 refines speaking, reading, and writing skills as it emphasizes vocabulary building. There is also intense grammar work in preparation for standardized tests that are encountered in the upper levels of the target language. Culture, geography, and history are included.

Spanish 4 is conducted exclusively in the target language. As an honors course, it places great responsibility for progress on the student. Students are expected to engage in self-instruction, independent work, readings, projects, and research. Emphasis is on communication skills and competency in the language. Literature and culture are studied and grammar is reviewed. Students are prepared for the SAT II Test.

# **Spanish Conversations**

This course will explore cultural topics for students studying the Spanish language. Students will develop and hone communication skills through the study of highly relevant cultural themes, such as immigration, the environment, the arts, and contemporary daily life. Through the use of primary, authentic sources, students will develop their oral, written, auditory and reading communication skills. This course is designed to be, above all, a conversation-based class with the aim that students increase their overall fluency throughout the year while engaging in personally relevant topics of study.

Prerequisite: Spanish 3 or equivalent

# **Enrichment Opportunities**

Consider these opportunities for enrichment, learning support, and expanded career and continuing education. When you consider a course or a program, think about the college and career readiness skills that it offers beyond what seems to be the career pathway. The Partnership for 21st Century Skills has identified Learning and Thinking Skills for College and Career Readiness. As much as students need to learn academic content, they also need to know how to be lifelong learners and how to make effective and innovative use of what they know throughout their lives.

Learning and Thinking Skills are comprised of:

- · Critical thinking and problem-solving skills;
- · Communication skills;
- · Creativity and innovation skills;
- · Collaboration skills;
- · Information and media literacy skills; and
- · Contextual learning skills.

### Arts and Letters Pathway

The Arts and Letters Pathway, offered at Albemarle and Western Albemarle high schools, provides opportunities for Fine Arts students to gain additional recognition, rigorous experiences, and college and career skills. The Pathway enables students to choose among several areas of concentration and, in addition to course study, students participate in internships (or mentorship), job sharing/shadowing, and a capstone project during their high school career. Students are eligible to enter the Pathway in either 9th or 10th grade and should speak with their counselor to learn more about this opportunity.

Albemarle High School Arts and Letters Pathway »

Western Albemarle High School Arts and Letters Pathway »

# AVID 9, 10, 11, 12

AVID provides scaffolded support that educators and students need to encourage college and career readiness and success. AVID 9 and 10 are designed with a focus on organization and academic skills to help students transition into high school and to be successful in rigorous college preparatory classes. AVID 11 continues to build on academic skills, but the focus changes to college readiness. Students review career goals and begin to design education plans that involve college exploration, test preparation, and financial aid awareness. AVID 12 begins the transition to post-secondary educational planning. Students focus on taking the SAT/ACT, exploring college, and completing college and financial aid applications.

Prerequisite: Students in AVID 12 must have completed a previous AVID class.

#### Core +

Tutorial courses provide students with the assistance they need to successfully complete their coursework. Students may receive help in one or several subjects.

# **Early College Scholars Degree Program**

In partnership with Piedmont Virginia Community College (PVCC), eligible students can earn an associate degree in General Studies while in high school. Monticello High School serves as the Early College Scholars Degree Program "home" due to its close proximity to PVCC; Dual Enrollment college-level courses are offered on both campuses. All students, regardless of their base school, can participate. Eligibility includes GPA, maturity and skills to succeed in college-level courses, and capacity to complete 63 credits for the associate degree. The benefits of Early College include transferability of college credit to a four-year college/university, college tuition savings, and ability to competitively join the workforce immediately upon high school. Students can meet with their school counselors to learn more and/or contact the Monticello High School Counseling Department.

# Independent Study

Independent Study courses, typically organized as a mentorship with a teacher or outside professional, enable students to conduct investigations related to their field(s) of interest.

# Seminar (Freshman, Sophomore, Junior, Senior)

The overarching mission of Seminar in each year of high school is to support students with their successful transition to high school; development as learners, community members, and friends; and progression to post-secondary plans. Seminar content includes understanding of the relationship between social, emotional and academic learning; faculty mentorship and guidance; and professional skill development so that students become caring, confident and competent citizens and workers.

# **Senior Study Hall**

Study Hall courses provide students with the opportunity and time to complete classroom assignments or school projects. Students typically work on their own, without the help of a tutor; however, they are supervised and usually remain in the classroom.

# **Study Hall**

Study Hall courses provide students with the opportunity and time to complete classroom assignments or school projects. Students typically work on their own, without the help of a tutor; however, they are supervised and usually remain in the classroom.

# **Study Skills**

Study Skills courses prepare students for success in high school and/or for postsecondary education. Course topics may vary according to the students involved, but typically include reading improvement skills, such as scanning, note-taking, and outlining; library and research skills; listening and note-taking; vocabulary skills; and test-taking skills. The courses may also include exercises designed to generate organized, logical thinking and writing.

# **Work-Based Learning**

Work-Based Learning (WBL) is a method of instruction that integrates an applied professional experience within a Career and Technical Education (CTE) course. Students investigate careers and gain insight into their strengths, interests and values through a range of WBL experience options, from short-term job shadowing to longer duration experiences such as internships, apprenticeships, service learning, and more. WBL brings relevancy to academics and helps students gain direction for future educational and career choices. WBL experiences are developed in partnership with local industry and community organizations in alignment with VDOE standards; students can also source WBL experiences. More information is available through each school's Career Center and Career Specialist.

# **General Information**

# **Athletic Eligibility**

#### VIRGINIA HIGH SCHOOL LEAGUE

To be eligible for participation on athletic teams, the Virginia High School League (VHSL) requires that students be enrolled in five (5) credits (in progress) and have passed five (5) classes (earned credits for 5 classes) the previous semester. Repeating a course for which a passing grade was received does not count toward the required five courses for athletic eligibility. First semester 9th graders are eligible on the basis of their promotion from the 8th grade the previous semester. See Athletic Handbook for details.

- · Any course in which a student receives a full credit during one semester may be doubled and counted as such for eligibility purposes.
- Any course taken every day or every other day (for an extended block; e.g., an A-B block) for the entire year counts as a stand alone course for
  one credit.
- · Any semester course taken for partial credit counts as one course.
- 3 credit courses at CATEC count as three classes for VHSL Eligibility.
- In the case of hybrid schedules one must count the courses based upon what is outlined above. Here are some scenarios:
  - Straight 4 x 4 (four courses taken each semester–each for one credit): These are double and, as such, a student must past a minimum of three each semester to be eligible.
  - 4x4 plus year-long courses or semester courses: Student is taking three 4 x 4 courses and three year-long or semester courses. If the
    student only passes two of the 4 x 4 courses (equivalent of four courses), the student must pass at least one year-long course to attain the
    required "pass five" standard. If a student only passes one of the 4 x 4 courses (equivalent of two courses), the student must pass all three
    of the year-long courses to attain five courses passed for credit.

Visit the VHLS Eligibility site »

#### NCAA – ACADEMIC ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

If you want to play National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) sports at an NCAA Division I or II school, you need to register with the NCAA Eligibility Center. The Eligibility Center works with you and your high school to certify your initial eligibility.

For more information about registering with the NCAA, view their Registration Checklist.

# **Certificate of Program Completion**

In accordance with the requirements of the Standards of Quality, students who complete coursework defined by the local school board but have not earned the required verified credits for diplomas are awarded Certificates of Program Completion.

#### Core Courses: Levels

ACPS offers the following levels of core courses, in addition to Advanced Placement (AP) and Dual Enrollment: Academic/Advanced and Honors. Individual high schools will use school improvement planning to determine course levels that may be effectively combined to increase opportunities for students to participate in higher course levels.

- Academic/Advanced level is offered as a college preparatory/school-to-work program. Students in Academic/Advanced classes are engaged in a
  rigorous curriculum designed to stimulate and encourage academic growth and performance.
- Honors level is designed for students demonstrating exceptional aptitude and achievement in the discipline and a desire to pursue the curriculum beyond the Academic/Advanced level of study. Honors students are expected to be self-motivated, independent learners able to engage in selfinstruction through independent reading, projects and research.

This level structure is intended to provide schools, through the school improvement process, the flexibility to combine levels of classes. Other options might be pursued through the school improvement process with the goal of ensuring opportunity and access to high-level curriculum and instruction for all students.

# **Diploma Seals**

Students meeting specific requirements for graduation and demonstrating exemplary performance may receive diploma seals for recognition. The Virginia Department of Education (VDOE) makes available multiple Graduation (Diploma) Seals of Achievement. For more information about each seal, including specific requirements, visit the <u>VDOE website</u>.

### **Early High School Program Completion**

A student planning to satisfy all graduation requirements established by the Commonwealth of Virginia and Albemarle County Public Schools prior to his or her cohort's graduation date may petition the school principal for early graduation. The student must write a plan in collaboration with school counseling staff and his or her parent or guardian including courses and other requirements to be fulfilled. The plan must also outline the student's reason for requesting early graduation. Reasons may range from hardships to plans for early college attendance. A request for early graduation will be approved at the discretion of the school principal. Students wishing to graduate in a time period of less than four years must be able to show that they can meet their graduation requirements. In addition, students must show that they have a sustainable post graduation plan. Students whose plans are approved will be remain enrolled at the school through their graduation date unless special circumstances are determined by the principal.

Early Graduation Request Form

# **Enriching Your High School Experience**

To encourage students to enrich their high school educational experience and to increase the rigor of the high school program, the following choices are available:

#### **ADVANCED PLACEMENT (AP)**

The Advanced Placement (AP) program, offered by the College Board, enables students to pursue college-level studies while still in high school. AP offers students the opportunity to participate in a rigorous curriculum that exposes students to high academic intensity and quality.

AP Examinations are administered each year in May and represent the culmination of college-level work in a given discipline in a secondary school setting. Rigorously developed by committees of college and AP high school faculty, the AP Exams test students' ability to perform at a college level. Students who perform well may earn college credit and/or advanced standing at thousands of universities worldwide.

Based on the amount of work required outside of the classroom, students who want to enroll in more than three Honors and/or AP level classes per semester should carefully consider their academic, personal and extracurricular activities. Students are encouraged to consult with their school counselor. **Note:** Starting with the incoming class of 2022, students will be limited to taking no more than nine AP classes over the course of their high school career.

Visit the <u>CollegeBoard</u> website for more details about AP courses and exams, including exam dates and fees. Financial assistance is available for economically disadvantaged students. See a school counselor for more information.

View Advanced Placement Tests and Scores Accepted by Virginia Institutions »

#### DUAL ENROLLMENT/DUAL CREDIT

Students may choose to get a jump-start on a college degree or certificate by taking college classes while in high school. This can be accomplished through Dual Enrollment or Dual Credit classes, which allow eligible students to earn high school and college credit simultaneously.

Students can save money toward higher education by taking Dual Enrollment classes, which are taught in their high school during the regular school day at no cost. Alternately, a student may choose to enroll in Dual Credit classes, which are taken on the college campus. Students are responsible for any expenses associated with Dual Credit classes.

Students participating in Dual Enrollment or Dual Credit courses follow the college add/drop policy and deadlines. Course offerings vary from year to year. Courses taken in the core areas (English, history/social sciences, mathematics, and science) are weighted as Dual Enrollment/Dual Credit courses.

Students who successfully complete these courses earn college credit from the partnering higher education institution. Credit transfer to another college or university depends upon the policies of that individual college or university.

Albemarle County Public Schools offers a variety of Dual Enrollment and Dual Credit opportunities in partnership with Piedmont Virginia Community College. A smaller number of Dual Enrollment opportunities exist in partnership with Reynolds Community College.

#### **GOVERNOR'S SENIOR YEAR PLUS**

Governor's Senior Year Plus: Early College Scholars Agreement is intended to allow and to encourage eligible high school seniors to complete requirements for a high school diploma and concurrently earn at least 15 hours of transferable credits toward a college degree. This results in a more productive senior year and reduces the amount of college tuition for families. See your school counselor for more information.

#### SENIOR CAPSTONE, PORTFOLIOS, AND WORK-BASED LEARNING

Students will complete one or more of the following throughout their high school career: a senior capstone project, portfolio, performance-based assessment, or structured experiment that relates to a work-based learning, service-learning, or community engagement activity. Such capstone project, portfolio, performance-based assessment, or structured experiment shall align with and further develop the knowledge and skills attained through such work-based learning, service-learning, or community engagement activity.

Work-based learning (WBL) is a school-coordinated, coherent sequence of on-the-job experiences that relate to students' career goals and/or interests, are based on instructional preparation, and are performed in partnership with local businesses, industries, or other organizations in the community. WBL enables students to apply classroom instruction in a real-world business or service-oriented work environment.

#### VIRTUAL LEARNING

The Virtual Learning program provides opportunities for students in Grades 9-12 to complete coursework in a virtual setting. Albemarle County Public Schools (ACPS) offers virtual courses led by ACPS teachers that are aligned to the same standards and at the same level of rigor as traditional classroom offerings.

For a complete listing of virtual courses offered through ACPS and guidelines for taking virtual courses with Virtual Virginia and other institutions, visit our <u>Virtual Learning</u> web page or contact your school counselor.

#### VIRTUAL VIRGINIA

As a program of the Virginia Department of Education, <u>Virtual Virginia (VVA)</u> at this time offers online Advanced Placement (AP), world language, core academic, and elective courses to students throughout the Commonwealth.

The Virtual Virginia program is available to students in Grades 9-12 who are pursuing courses that are not offered at their high school.

For a complete listing of virtual courses offered through ACPS and guidelines for taking virtual courses with Virtual Virginia and other institutions, visit our Virtual Learning web page or contact your school counselor.

# Grade Point Average, Academic Achievement Program & Weighted Grades

#### **GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA)**

GPA is determined by dividing the total grade points received by the total number of credits attempted.

#### **ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT PROGRAM**

The school division's academic achievement program recognizes all graduating seniors who earn an unweighted 3.0 grade point average (GPA) or better during their high school career. The primary objective of this program is to recognize students both for their consistently high performance throughout their four years of high school and for the contributions so many of them make to our high school communities.

We have three levels of academic honor recognitions. The following designations are affixed to the student's diploma:

- Cum Laude, Graduating With Praise for students whose unweighted GPA is from 3.0 to 3.4
- Magna Cum Laude, Graduating With Great Praise for students whose unweighted GPA is from 3.5 to 3.7
- Summa Cum Laude, Graduating With Highest Praise for students whose unweighted GPA is 3.8 or higher

#### WEIGHTED GRADES

As part of the school profile, each high school will report class size. Class rank will only be reported for special circumstances: military academies, honors programs, and scholarship opportunities.

Grade	Standard/Academic/Advanced	Honors/AP/Dual Enrollment/Dual Credit
Α	4	5
В	3	4
С	2	3
D	1	2
F	0	0

Note: Beginning with the entering freshman class in the fall of 2022, grades will no longer be weighted; all courses will be worth the same total grade points. This change also applies to current middle school students who are taking high school credit courses.

# **Grading Scale**

The division's grading scale is as follows:

Grade	Range
Α	90-100
В	80-89
С	70-79
D	60-69
F	50-59

# **Graduation Requirements**

Most Virginia students graduate with either an Advanced Studies Diploma or a Standard Diploma. Other diploma options are available for eligible students with disabilities and adult learners. Use the links below to access information about diploma options and requirements:

- **Advanced Studies Diploma**
- Standard Diploma
- Applied Studies Diploma
- Other Diplomas & Certificates

# **Individualized Student Alternative Education Program (ISAEP)**

An ISAEP provides students at-risk of dropping out of school an educational experience that can prepare them for continued learning, successful employment, and responsible citizenship. A referral to ISAEP may be made by the student's base school when a student demonstrates substantial need for an alternative program. The ISAEP recognizes that standard educational schedules and methods are not successful for all students. An ISAEP offers the opportunity of successful closure to one's high school experience and opens the possibility for continuing education.

In order to be considered for an ISAEP, students must:

- Currently be enrolled in an Albemarle County high school;
- Be at least 16 and one year (6 or more credits) behind their entering class in credits earned;
- Achieve minimum entry test scores (a minimum of 410) on each of the five sections of the General Educational Development (GED) Practice Test and a minimum score of 7.5 on the Tests of Adult Basic Education (TABE) Reading Test;
- Complete a visit to the program;
- Meet with their parent/guardian, school counselor, and ISAEP Coordinator prior to enrollment in ISAEP; and
- Complete a career-aptitude assessment.

Each ISAEP has the following components:

- Academic preparation for the GED exam:
- Career guidance and exploration (demonstrate proficiency in Virginia's Workplace Readiness Skills); 58

- · Occupational experience and/or training; and
- Econ PPF Credit.

The program is located on the campus of Community Lab School (formerly Murray High School). Students who pursue an ISAEP follow a class and career/technical schedule based on their individual situation. See your school counselor for more information.

# **Regulations Governing the Secondary School Transcript**

On March 29, 2007, the Virginia Board of Education adopted amended regulations governing the Secondary School Transcript. These revisions were made in order to strengthen the transcript regulations and to bring them into conformity with amended or new state and federal laws as well as the needs of higher education. The secondary school transcript regulations became effective for students taking secondary courses for credit beginning in the 2008-09 school year.

When parents request a transcript from the high school, the student's "test record" is required by law to be on it *unless* the parent has requested in writing that the information be excluded. "Test record" includes at least the highest score earned, if available, on college performance-related standardized tests, such as the SAT and ACT, and excludes Standards of Learning (SOL) test scores. **Note:** Parents/guardians who would like this information excluded from their child's high school transcript should contact their child's school counselor for the appropriate form.

Full-day absences will be noted on the transcript yearly.

#### Sequential Electives

Beginning with students entering ninth grade in the 2018-19 school year, students qualifying for an Advanced Studies Diploma must successfully complete two sequential electives for two full credits chosen from a concentration of courses that provide a foundation for further education, training or preparation for employment. Certain courses satisfy the requirement for Fine Arts or Career and Technical Education and for sequential electives. All students qualifying for a Standard Diploma must meet the same requirement.

#### **Student Course Load**

All students through grade 12 shall maintain a full-day schedule of classes unless:

- · A waiver is granted by the Superintendent/Designee;
- A recommendation of the principal and acceptance by a college or university has qualified a student to be released during school hours to take
  college or university courses. Tuition and transportation for these courses are the responsibility of the student; or
- · Students are taking college courses for dual credit according to the Virginia accreditation standards.

#### **Verified Credits**

A **standard credit** is awarded for a course in which the student successfully completes the objectives of the course and the equivalent of 140 clock hours of instruction.

A **verified credit** is awarded for a course in which the student earns a standard unit of credit *and* achieves a passing score on a corresponding end-of-course SOL test or a substitute assessment approved by the Board of Education.

For responses to commonly asked questions about verified credits, visit the Board of Education's <u>Frequently Asked Questions About Earning a Virginia High School Diploma</u>.

For specifics about verified credit requirements for transfer students, visit the Board of Education's Information for Transfer Students page.

Ask your school counselor for more information about verified and locally verified credits.

# Early Graduation Request



Name of Student:	

Students wishing to graduate in a time period of less than four years must be able to show that they can meet their graduation requirements. In addition, students must show that they have a sustainable post-graduation plan. Students who are considered "early graduates" will be enrolled in an internship or work-study course until their cohort graduates. They also are eligible to participate in graduation.

They also are eligible to participa	te in graduation.		
Credits Earned:	Credits in I	Progress:	Credits Needed:
English	English		English
History	History		History
Math	Math		Math
cience	Science		Science
World Lang.	 World Lang	g.	World Lang.
lealth/PE	 Health/PE		Health/PE
lectives	 Electives		Electives
reshman Seminar	 Personal F	inance	Personal Finance
Personal Finance	<del>-</del>		_
Fine Arts or Career and Technical Sequential Electives (if applicable Advanced Placement or Honors o	e):		
OL Credits Earned:			
	orld Hist. I	Earth Science	Reading
· ——	orld Hist. II	Biology	Writing
lgebra II U.S	S. History	Chemistry	World Geography
<b>Diploma Type:</b> Advanced	Standar	rd	
Post High School Plan:			
College			
Ailitary			
mployment			
Other			<u></u>
Comments: (Feel free to attach a	lottor ovalaining your	student's situation	
.omments: (Feer free to attach a	letter explaining your	student 5 Situation.)	
tudent Signature:			Date:
arent Signature:			Date:
Counselor Signature:		Date:	
INAL PRINCIPAL APPROVAL:			Date:

# **Index of Courses**

**AP Environmental Science** 

Click a program area below to view the full list of courses offered for that program.

Advanced Placement (AP)
AP Art History
AP Biology
AP Calculus AB
AP Calculus BC
AP Chemistry
AP Comparative Government
AP Computer Science A
AP Computer Science Principles
AP English Language & Composition
AP English Literature & Composition

AP European History
AP French Language
AP German Language
AP Human Geography
AP Latin
AP Microeconomics - VA Personal Finance
AP Music Theory
AP Physics 1, 2
AP Physics C: Electricity and Magnetism
AP Physics C: Mechanics
AP Psychology
AP Spanish Language
AP Spanish Literature

AP Studio Art: 2-D Design
AP Studio Art: Drawing
AP US Government & Politics
AP US History
AP World History
Psychology Applications & Research
Career and Technical Education
Career and Technical Education  AP Computer Science A
AP Computer Science A
AP Computer Science A  AP Computer Science Principles

**AP Statistics** 

Biotechnology Foundations in Health & Medical Sciences
Business Management
Computer Science 1, 2
Culinary Arts Specialization
Cybersecurity 1, 2, 3
Design 1, 2
Design Your Future Capstone
Digital and Social Media Marketing
Drawing & Design 2
Economics/Personal Finance
Education for Employment 1
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) 1, 2, 3

Engineering 1, 2

Engineering Drawing & Design
Engineering Research 1, 2
Entrepreneurship 1, 2
Game Design and Development 1, 2
Geospatial Technology 1, 2
Health & Medical Sciences 1, 2
IB Design Technology I, II
Information Technology Fundamentals
Introduction to Culinary Arts
JMU GEOG 161 Geospatial Tools and Techniques
Leadership & Design Thinking
Marketing 1, 2
Media and Web Design 1, 2

Medical Laboratory Technology 1
Personal Finance
Personal Living and Finances
Principles of Technology 1, 2
PVCC BUS 100/200 Business and Management
PVCC BUS 116/165 Entrepreneurship and Small Business
PVCC CAD 151 Engineering Drawing Fundamentals
PVCC EDU 200 Teaching as a Profession 1
PVCC EGR 121 Introduction to Engineering
PVCC EGR 122 Engineering Graphics
PVCC FIN 107 Personal Finance
PVCC HLT 141 Medical Terminology
PVCC ITD 110/210 Web Page Design I/II

Robotics & Automation 1, 2
Sports & Entertainment Marketing 1, 2
Sports Medicine/Physiology 1, 2
Teaching as a Profession 2
Technical Drawing & Design
Video & Media Tech 1, 2, 3
Dual Enrollment
JMU GEOG 161 Geospatial Tools and Techniques
JMU GEOG 161 Geospatial Tools and Techniques
JMU GEOG 161 Geospatial Tools and Techniques  PVCC ART 121/122 Drawing I/II

**PVCC BUS 116/165 Entrepreneurship and Small Business** 

PVCC CAD 151 Engineering Drawing Fundamentals
PVCC CHM 101 Introduction to Chemistry
PVCC CHM 111 College Chemistry I
PVCC CST 100 Public Speaking
PVCC ECON 201 Macroeconomics
PVCC ECON 202 Microeconomics
PVCC EDU 200 Teaching as a Profession 1
PVCC EGR 121 Introduction to Engineering
PVCC EGR 122 Engineering Graphics
PVCC ENG 111/112/243 College Composition I/II/Survey of English Literature I
PVCC ENG 111/112 College Composition I/II
PVCC FIN 107 Personal Finance
PVCC GEO 210 Cultural Geography

PVCC GOL 105 Physical Geology
PVCC GOL 106 Historical Geology
PVCC HIS 121/122 US History
PVCC HLT 125 Anatomy and Physiology for Exercise Science
PVCC HLT 141 Medical Terminology
PVCC ITD 110/210 Web Page Design I/II
PVCC ITE 119 Information Literacy
PVCC MTH 154/155 Quantitative Reasoning/Statistics
PVCC MTH 161/261 PreCalculus I/Applied Calculus I
PVCC MTH 265/267 Calculus III/Differential Equations
PVCC NAS 131/132 Astronomy
PVCC PHI 220 Ethics
PVCC PHY 201 General College Physics

**PVCC PLS 135/136 US, State & Local Government** 

# PVCC PSY 200/230 Principles of Psychology/Developmental Psychology

English
AP English Language & Composition
AP English Literature & Composition
Biblical Literature
Core +
English 9, 10, 11, 12
Environmental Literature/Law/Policy
ESOL 1, 2, 3
ESOL Study Skills 1, 2
Genre Studies
IB English 11, 12

Peer Tutoring I, II, III
PVCC ENG 111/112/243 College Composition I/II/Survey of English Literature I
PVCC ENG 111/112 College Composition I/II
Skills Development Read/Write 1, 2, 3, 4
Enrichment Opportunities
Arts and Letters Pathway
AVID 9, 10, 11, 12
Core +
Early College Scholars Degree Program
Independent Study
Seminar (Freshman, Sophomore, Junior, Senior)
Senior Study Hall
Study Hall

# **Work-Based Learning Fine and Performing Arts Advanced Concert Choir Advanced Women's Ensemble AP Art History AP Music Theory AP Studio Art: 2-D Design AP Studio Art: Drawing** Art 1, 2, 3, 4 Audio Recording and Production 1, 2 **Ceramics 1, 2, 3, 4 Concert Band**

**Study Skills** 

**Concert Choir** 

Concert Orchestra
Contemporary Media and Art
Creative Writing 1, 2, 3, 4
Debate 1, 2, 3
Digital Arts 1, 2, 3, 4
Film and Video Production 1, 2, 3, 4
Film Photography
Film Study/Filmmaking 1, 2, 3, 4
Geometry and the Visual Arts
Guitar 1, 2
IB Film I, II
IB Music I

IB Visual Arts I, II

Improvisation and Comedy
Jazz Band
Journalism 1, 2, 3, 4
Marching Band
Men's Ensemble
Multimedia Crafts 1, 2, 3, 4
Musical Theatre Ensemble
Music Theory
Percussion Ensemble
Photography 1, 2, 3, 4
Piano/Keyboard 1, 2, 3, 4
Public Speaking
PVCC ART 121/122 Drawing I/II

Show Choir
Speech & Communication
String Ensemble
Symphonic Band
Technical Theatre
Theatre Arts 1, 2, 3, 4
Treble Jazz
Vocal Jazz
Wind Ensemble
Women's Ensemble
Yearbook 1, 2, 3, 4
Health, Physical Education & Driver Education

**PVCC CST 100 Public Speaking** 

Dance 1, 2
Driver Education: Classroom Instruction
Health Education 1, 2
IB Dance
Physical Education 1, 2, 3, 4
PVCC HLT 125 Anatomy and Physiology for Exercise Science
Team Sports
Weight Training 1, 2, 3, 4
Yoga/Fitness 1, 2
History & Social Science
African American History
AP Comparative Government
AP European History
76

AP Human Geography
AP Psychology
AP US Government & Politics
AP US History
AP World History
Economics
History Lab
History Through Film
Humanities 1, 2, 3
IB Environmental Systems & Societies
IB History 11, 12
IB Philosophy
IB Theory of Knowledge I

Issues of the Modern World
Leadership 1, 2, 3, 4
Philosophy
Practical Law
Psychology
Psychology Applications & Research
PVCC ECON 201 Macroeconomics
PVCC ECON 202 Microeconomics
PVCC GEO 210 Cultural Geography
PVCC HIS 121/122 US History
PVCC PHI 220 Ethics
PVCC PLS 135/136 US, State & Local Government
PVCC PSY 200/230 Principles of Psychology/Developmental Psychology

## **Sociology VA/US Government Women's Studies World Geography World History 1500 to the Present World History to 1500 International Baccalaureate (IB)** IB Biology I, II **IB Dance** IB Design Technology I, II **IB English 11, 12 IB Environmental Systems and Societies IB Environmental Systems & Societies**

79

IB Film I, II

IB History 11, 12
IB Math: Analysis and Approaches I
IB Math: Applications and Interpretations I, II
IB Music I
IB Philosophy
IB Spanish IV, V
IB Theory of Knowledge I
IB Visual Arts I, II
Mathematics
Algebra 1, 2, 3
Algebra 1: Part 1, Part 2
Algebra 2/Trigonometry
Algebra Functions Data Analysis

AP Calculus AB
AP Calculus BC
AP Statistics
Computer Mathematics
Consumer Math
Geometry
Geometry and the Visual Arts
IB Math: Analysis and Approaches I
IB Math: Applications and Interpretations I, II
Mathematical Analysis
Probability & Statistics
PVCC MTH 154/155 Quantitative Reasoning/Statistics
PVCC MTH 161/261 PreCalculus I/Applied Calculus I

## Skills Development Math 1, 2, 3 Science **Analytical Lab Investigations AP Biology AP Chemistry AP Environmental Science** AP Physics 1, 2 **AP Physics C: Electricity and Magnetism AP Physics C: Mechanics Astronomy Biology 1 Biology 2: Anatomy & Physiology**

**PVCC MTH 265/267 Calculus III/Differential Equations** 

**Biology 2: Animal Studies** 

Chemistry 1
Earth Science
Earth Science 2: Geology
Earth Science 2: Oceanography
Ecology
Horticulture 1
IB Biology I, II
IB Environmental Systems and Societies
Physics 1
PVCC BIO 101/102 General Biology
PVCC BIO 107 Biology of the Environment
PVCC CHM 101 Introduction to Chemistry

**PVCC CHM 111 College Chemistry I** 

PVCC GOL 105 Physical Geology
PVCC GOL 106 Historical Geology
PVCC NAS 131/132 Astronomy
PVCC PHY 201 General College Physics
Special Education
Community Life/Living
Functional Skills Writing & Communication
Life/Social Skills
Resource
World Languages
AP French Language
AP German Language
AP Latin

## **AP Spanish Language AP Spanish Literature** French 1, 2, 3, 4 German 1, 2, 3, 4 IB Spanish IV, V Latin 1, 2, 3, 4 Spanish 1, 2, 3, 4 **Spanish Conversations**